
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 

 

 

Thursday, 3 November 2022 

 

Tel: 01993 861522 

e-mail - democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk 

 

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

You are summoned to a meeting of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee which will be held 

in the Council Chamber, Woodgreen, Witney OX28 1NB on Monday, 14 November 2022 at 2.00 

pm. 

 

 
Giles Hughes 

Chief Executive 

 

 
To: Members of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 

Councillors: Elizabeth Poskitt (Chair), Rizvana Poole (Vice-Chair), Alaa Al-Yousuf, Lidia 

Arciszewska, Hugo Ashton, Andrew Beaney, Mike Cahill, Jeff Haine, David Jackson, 

Geoff Saul, Dean Temple and Alex Wilson 

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Cabinet, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed. 

 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10) 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 17 October 2022. 

 

2.   Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations from Members of the Committee on any items to be 

considered at the meeting 

 

4.   Applications for Development (Pages 11 - 60) 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development, details of which are set out in the attached 

schedule. 

Recommendation: 

That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations of the 
Business Manager – Development Management. 

 

Page Application No. Address  Planning Officer 

13 - 

43 

22/01330/OUT Land North Of Witney 

Road, 

Long Hanborough  

 

Stephanie Eldridge  

44 - 

60 

22/02429/FUL Play Area Walterbush 

Road, 

Chipping Norton  

 

James Nelson  

 

 

5.   Update as to progress of 2 applications on allocated sites in Woodstock ref 

21/00217/OUT and 21/00189/FUL (Pages 61 - 68) 

Purpose  

To update members as to progress towards determination of the above applications and 

to enable member input following the site visits such as to reduce the likelihood of the 

need for further deferrals when the items are considered.  

 

Recommendation 

That the Sub-Committee notes the update and provides such initial views as to what may 

need to be addressed in the committee reports as they see fit. 

 

6.   Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions (Pages 69 - 84) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of applications determined under delegated powers and 

any appeal decisions. 

Recommendation: 

That the reports be noted. 

 

Page 2



 

 

(END) 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Minutes of the meeting of the 

Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

Held in the Council Chamber at 2.00 pm on Monday, 17 October 2022 

PRESENT 

Councillors: Elizabeth Poskitt (Chair), Lidia Arciszewska, Hugo Ashton, Andrew Beaney, Mike 

Cahill, Jeff Haine, David Jackson, Geoff Saul, Dean Temple and Alex Wilson. 

Officers:  Phil Shaw (Business Manager - Development Management) James Nelson (Planning 

Officer), Sarah Hegerty (Planning Officer), Stephanie Eldridge (Principal  Planner), Kelly Murray 

(Principal Planner Enforcement), Clare Anscombe (Senior Planner), Emily Rogers 

(Enforcement Investigation Officer), Anne Learmonth (Strategic Support Officer) and Andrew 

Brown (Democratic Services Business Manager).   

24 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

The minutes of the meeting held on Monday 22 August and Monday 19 September were 

approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record, subject to the following 

amendment to item 21 Declarations of Interest, and agreed by the committee that 

‘Councillors Al-Yousuf and Haine called for a report on the lack of a 5-Year housing land 

supply to be discussed in an urgent meeting of the Development Control Committee and 

wanted to return to this item for further discussion after dealing with the applications on the 

agenda.’ 

25 Apologies for Absence  

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Rizvana Poole.  

26 Declarations of Interest  

Declarations of Interest were received as follows; 

1. Page 44, 22/03837/FUL Snowshill House, The Green, Fifield. Councillor Haine said he 

had advised the applicant on planning procedure and would therefore leave the room 

when the application was being decided.  

2. Page 13, 21/00961/FUL Land South of Shaston, The Green, Freeland, Councillor Al-

Yousuf advised that his property was on the application plan.  

27 Applications for Development  

The Chair announced that due to the public participants who wished to speak the applications 

would be heard in a revised order.  

21/03837/FUL Green Bank, Dyers Hill, Charlbury 

James Nelson, Planning Officer, introduced the application for demolition of existing dwelling 

and erection of a replacement dwelling with associated car parking and landscaping (amended 

plans). The Planning Officer drew the Members attention to the late representations report.  

There was a statement read out by Councillor Peter Kenrick, Charlbury Town Council, in 

objection to the application. A copy of this submission is attached to the original copy of the 

minutes.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 1



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

17/October2022 

 

 

A statement was read out by Peter Mance on behalf of the applicant. A copy of this submission 

is attached to the original copy of the minutes.  

Councillor Ashton asked the speaker for clarification on excavation and landscaping. Peter 

Mance confirmed that earth excavated for construction of the property would be used for 

landscaping around the property.  

The Planning Officer continued with the presentation and cited the local plan policy H6, 

including visual and ecological impacts when making the recommendations for approval of 

application. The officer confirmed there would not be an impact on drainage or any impact on 

Charlbury Conservation area and AONB.  

There was a discussion regarding the access to the property. Councillors asked if there could 

be a condition included to cover travel management. The Planning Officer confirmed there had 

been no objections from the Local Highway Authority. Councillor Beaney referred to page 31 

of the agenda pack referring to a Traffic Management Plan raised by Charlbury Town Council 

and asked what would be included. The Planning Officer confirmed that a condition for a 

Construction Traffic Management Plan could be included if the application was approved.  

Councillors asked about the scale of the building and the floor area change as well as the 

characteristics of the design and views. The Planning Officer confirmed the scale of the existing 

dwelling and that the slightly increased scale of the new dwelling is reasonable as it is broadly 

the same footprint. Further, the design would not block the views of other resident and views 

of the town. Councillors asked about the flooding plan in light of amended plans submitted. 

The Planning Officer confirmed that an updated flood risk assessment had been carried out in 

relation to the revised plan and that the Drainage Team raised no objections subject to the 

condition. 

Committee resolved that the application should be approved subject to the addition of a 

condition to include Construction Traffic Management Plan and an informative referencing 
several of points raised by the Town Council on page 31 of Officer’s report which should be 

included in CTMP when submitted. 

Councillor Jeff Haine left the meeting.  

2201879/FUL Snowshill House, The Green, Fifield, Chipping Norton. 

James Nelson, Planning Officer, introduced the application for erection of Polytunnel for the 

purpose of growing agricultural produce for personal use. (Retrospective). 

There was a statement read out by jointly by Adrian McDowell and Mark Slater in support of 

the application. A copy of this submission is attached to the original copy of the minutes. 

The Planning Officer continued with the presentation. Confirming the proposed development 

would not impact the lawful use of the land. The site was not overly visible as it was screened 

by hedgerows. There would be no impact on highways or drainage.  

There was a discussion on conditions regarding the screening and why it was needed. The 

Planning Officer confirmed the condition was to ensure any hedgerow screening was to be 

replaced if needed.  Further discussion took place on Condition 1 naming the applicant, 

Councillors questioned whether it should it be linked to use rather than ownership. The 

Page 6



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

17/October2022 

 

 

Planning Officer confirmed that the land should not be used as an extended garden and the 

wording could be changed to reflect this.  

Committee resolved that the application should be approved subject to the amendment of 

condition 1 to remove reference to applicants and change for private agricultural use ancillary 

to the house only.  

Abstention - Councillor Beaney.   

Councillor Jeff Haine returned to the Chamber.  

21/03837/FUL Land South of Shaston, The Green, Freeland 

Sarah Hegerty, Planning Officer, introduced the application for a new build chalet bungalow 

with detached double garage. In terms of the principle of development the site is not 

considered to comply with policy H2 because it sits outside the main built up area of Freeland. 

Due to the lack of 5 year land supply the tilted balance has been applied. Additional 

information was submitted regarding biodiversity and planting of shrubs and trees, the 

installation of bat boxes and the provision of a pond. The Planning Officer confirmed that in 

light of this initial concerns were overcome.  

Councillors raised concerns about the access road, questioning who would be responsible for 

the road during the construction of the property as it is in poor condition. The Planning 

Officer confirmed that the County Council was approached and there was no objections by 

the Local Highway Authority. Councillor Al-Yousuf confirmed that neighbours had raised 

concerns over the public right of way for residents to access their properties on the access 

road as this road is not privately owned by a third party.  

Councillor Al-Yousuf raised concerns on making decisions on applications when applying tilted 

balance highlighting planning policies OS2 and H2 regarding this application. Councillor Al-

Yousuf proposed that the application be deferred to 14 November Uplands Area Planning 

Sub-Committee meeting after which there would be up to date guidance following the 
Development Control meeting on 7 November.  There was a discussion around tilted balance 

decisions and policies within the Local Plan. The officers advised that the deferral of the 

application would not be beneficial when considering policies as there are no harms identified.   

Resolved as per the Officer’s recommendations.  

22/01915/FUL Land and Building (E) 439518 and (N) 226211. 

Stephanie Eldridge, Principal Planning Officer introduced the application for erection of a 

detached building to provide administration, welfare and storage facilities for the aircraft 

maintenance, flying school and resident pilots. The Officer outlined the extent of development 

over the past 20 years on the site with storage units available. The design of the proposed 

building was considered out of character with the other simple, low lying buildings on the site.  

Officers recommended refusal on the grounds the need for additional storage had not been 

justified and the unacceptable visual impact of the building.  

There was a discussion regarding the storage and the design of the building. Concerns were 

raised about the urbanisation of buildings on the site and wider landscape. Councillor Al-

Yousuf asked for clarification on the enforcement action, page 80. The officer confirmed that 

Page 7



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

17/October2022 

 

 

the enforcement team had done some work regarding the site and it was found that the 

number of flights on the site was well within the permitted level of activity on the wider site.  

Resolved as per the Officer’s recommendations. 

28 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions  

The Planning Officer explained that 22/02188/FUL, page 68, was temporary staff 

accommodation for care staff at the care home to enable them to be on site for residents.  

The report giving details of applications determined under delegated powers was received and 

noted.  

Appeals 

Land East of Barns Lane, Burford.  

The Planning Officer talked through the decision explaining that the Inspector felt that the 

harm caused by a development of this scale within the Cotswold AONB and Conservation 

Area would outweigh the public benefits – even when taking the lack of a 5YHLS and the tilted 

balance into account. The officer referred to the statement made by the Inspector. Councillor 

Al-Yousuf asked a question for the record; the hearing for the Barns Lane appeal ran from 27 

June to early July and it was known that the Council could not demonstrate the 5 year land 

supply.  How was it possible that, at the Full Council meeting on 20 July, a written question 

and answer submitted to the Cabinet Member, Councillor Rylett, had elicited the response 

that there was still in excess of a 5 year land supply.  Officers confirmed that while the 

appellant was claiming that the Council could not demonstrate a 5YHLS at the time of the 

appeal hearing, the Council’s position was that it could. This changed following the Appeal 

Decision from the Inspector.  

APP/D3125/W/21/3288685 Land off Toy Lane.  

The appeal was dismissed on grounds of the new dwelling being cramped, and amenity 

grounds on the basis that the property would overlook the existing properties, and that the 

access road was unsuitable with concerns for highway safety.  

APP/D3125/W/21/3277461 & APP/D3125/Y/21/3277462 Land North of Gardiners Arms, 

Medcroft Road, Tackley OX5 3AQ  

The double application was dismissed on grounds that the conversion of a function room into 

a single dwelling would be a loss to the community and would be against policy E5 which 

protects community facilities. There would be harm to the building as it is listed.  

The report giving details of appeals was received and noted.  

Councillor Jackson left the meeting at 4pm. 

29 Progress on Enforcement Cases  

Page 8



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

17/October2022 

 

 

Kelly Murray, Principal Planner (Enforcement and Appeals) introduced the paper with the 

agreement to go through the report page by page.  

Kelly Murray gave explanations of the various cases and took questions from the Committee 

members to discuss each case.   

Page 77 Unicorn Public House, Great Rollright. No longer within the enforcement team. The 

Estates division is dealing with the case, more cost effective to find a way to develop the site 

and use the funds for the upkeep of the pub. Councillor Beaney asked if there were any 

building control reports in the public domain updating the progress on this case as it had been 

referred to the Finance and Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Phil Shaw 

explained that Building Control reviews the building on a monthly basis. Claire Lock is in 

discussion with the applicant on how to bring things forward.  

Page 78 Netherby Farm. Unauthorised residential use of a caravan on site, an application had 

been submitted for temporary consent but following Members’ resolving to refuse the 

application, an enforcement notice was served which was appealed. Written representations 

have been submitted and a decision is awaited. Councillor Haine asked about engineering 

works at the site. The Principal Officer confirmed she would check this on her next site visit.  

Land East of the Slade, Charlbury. Application for a certificate of lawfulness for storage on this 

land was refused and an enforcement notice served which was  appealed. The appeal has been  

withdrawn. The deadline for ceasing the storage use is December.  

Page 79 The Beeches. There was a discussion about the site, and the Principal Officer 

explained that other agencies were involved but that there was not considered to be any 

material harm in relation to current planning breaches on this established caravan site.  

Page 81 Diddly Squat Farm. An appeal has been lodged against the enforcement notice and a 

further appeal against the planning decision issued last year in relation to an extension of the 

car park. The two appeals are likely to be joined which may delay the timetable and the 
hearing or inquiry dates. There was a question on filming the hearing and the Principal Officer 

confirmed that  by law the Council cannot prevent the hearing being filmed.  

There was a discussion on how enforcement cases and workloads are managed. Phil Shaw 

Business Manager for Development & Sustainability introduced Clare Anscombe, Senior 

Planner and confirmed there is recruitment underway for a further enforcement role.  

 

30 Outline application for the construction of up to 150 dwellings with access from Witney Road, 

open space and associated work on Land North Of Witney Road, Long Hanborough  

Stephanie Eldridge, Principal Planner (Development Management) introduced the report with a 

proposal for a site visit.  

Councillor Haine asked if the site visit could be incorporated with two site visits for 

applications coming up in Woodstock in November. The Chair expressed concern that it 

could be quite a lot for one day.  The Principal Officer confirmed that this would be beneficial 

to do all the site visits at once leaving enough time for all sites.  

It was agreed that there would be a site visit on 10 November at 9.30 starting at the Witney 

Road, Long Hanborough site.   

 

The Meeting closed at 4.40pm  

Page 9



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

17/October2022 

 

 

 

CHAIR 

Page 10



 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date: 14th November 2022 

 

 
REPORT OF THE BUSINESS MANAGER-DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development details of which are set out in the following pages. 

 

Recommendations: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Strategic Director. 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in the light of 

observations received between the preparation of the reports etc and the date of the meeting. 

 

List of Background Papers 
 
 

All documents, including forms, plans, consultations and representations on each application, but 

excluding any document, which in the opinion of the ‘proper officer’ discloses exempt information as 

defined in Section 1001 of the Local Government Act 1972.        

                                                 

Please note that: 

1. Observations received after the reports in this schedule were prepared will be summarised in a 

document which will be published late on the last working day before the meeting and available 

at the meeting or from www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings  

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings


Page Application Number Address Officer 

 

13 - 43 

 

22/01330/OUT Land North Of Witney Road 

 

Stephanie 

Eldridge 

 

44 - 60 

 

22/02429/FUL Play Area Walterbush Road 

 

James Nelson 

 

Page 12



 

Application Number 22/01330/OUT 

Site Address Land North Of 

Witney Road 

Long Hanborough 

Oxfordshire 

 

 

Date 2nd November 2022 

Officer Stephanie Eldridge 

Officer Recommendations Provisional Approval 

Parish Hanborough Parish Council 

Grid Reference 441171 E       214342 N 

Committee Date 14th November 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

 

Outline application for the construction of up to 150 dwellings with access from Witney Road, open 

space and associated work. 

Page 13



 

Applicant Details: 

 

Mr Ashley Maltman 

Blenheim Estate Homes 

The Estate Office 

Blenheim Palace 

Woodstock 

Oxon OX20 1PP 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

Parish Council Hanborough Parish Council (HPC) wishes to explain why we continue 

to object to development in the North Field which is the subject of 

the above planning application. Although this latest submission has 

been reduced from 170 to 150 dwellings and the overall layout 

"massaged" into a denser 'built' core with greater landscaping at the 

edges, there are fundamental reasons why this proposal will cause 

considerable harm to Long Hanborough and its infrastructure:  

 

1. If this proposal is approved, 525 new homes will have been 

added to our community in the space of only a few years. 

Hanborough can barely sustain the present population and another 

(approximately) 400 people will put unbearable strain on services 

generally. We have a poor range of services and facilities and can only 

tolerate very modest levels of additional dwellings each year - HPC 

respectfully points out that the WODC Local Plan 2031 Section 4.21 

confirms this - 150 new dwellings are not "modest". Specific issues:  

 

 The GPs surgery already suffers from long waiting times 

(despite it being built specifically as part of recent expansion)  

 The dentist in the village is full and not accepting adult 

patients.  

 The Water infrastructure is extremely close to capacity.  

 Traffic congestion (see point 4 and 5)  

 Schools incl. pre-Schools are at capacity (see point 6)  

 

 

2. The indicative site layout plan accompanying the application 

suggests a dense "core" of new dwellings astride pathways either side 

of Grimm's Ditch. If the designs produced south of the A4095 are to 

be repeated here HPC fears that this will create a completely 

incongruous mismatch between the architecture and its setting. The 

edges of villages need a varied "feathering out" appearance so that 

spaces between buildings look natural - not a "hard edge" of 

reconstructed stone with all roof pitches identical.  

 

3. The view of the Conservation Area approaching Hanborough 

from Freeland will be destroyed by this development. It will be many 

years before the proposed tree screening shown on the applicant's 

Page 14



plan is substantial enough to work - and, even then, the 

aforementioned view will be lost anyway. NPPF Paras. 132 and 133 

state that ."in order for any 'harm' to a Conservation Area to be 

allowed there must be clear and convincing justification that proves it 

is required for the greater public benefit". There has been absolutely 

nothing from the applicants to address this requirement.  

 

4. Traffic flows through Hanborough are reaching capacity at 

key times, often with complete standstill scenarios at both ends of the 

working day. This proposal will require an additional right turning 

lane, which together with the existing right turn into Hanborough 

Gate, will make the 'geometry' very complicated and potentially 

dangerous. Traffic going westwards already accelerates when drivers 

see the open road towards Freeland and there have already been 

many "near misses" at this junction. The applicant's own Traffic study 

shows that some vehicles were recorded travelling at over 50mph in 

what is a 30mph zone and we cannot see how the proposed 'double 

junction' can operate safely without traffic light controls. This will 

create an "urbanising" effect on the edge of our village.  

 

5. We would also question some of the criteria used by the 

applicant's Traffic Consultants in their submission. Vehicle movements 

to and from dwellings are today vastly increased from what they used 

to be. In addition to the private car movements there are now a large 

number of daily delivery vehicle movements to each house - a few 

moments spent mid-morning in Hanborough Gate will demonstrate 

the significant presence of Ocado, Amazon and assorted other 

delivery vehicles moving around the site on estate roads that are not 

wide enough for that volume of traffic, thus harming the environment 

and our social fabric. The mini roundabout at the Co-Op is also a 

significant pinch point and will only get busier as traffic increases.  

 

6. NPPF Paragraph 73 states that "new development should be 

well supported by local infrastructure and that there should be a 

choice of transport modes". HPC believes one modest supermarket, a 

fish and chip shop and a single route bus service that stops operating 

at 7.00pm each day certainly does not meet this requirement.  

 

7. The applicant's own submission admits that there is no chance 

of Hanborough having enough school places for more children that 

may be generated by this application. Primary, Secondary, Special and 

pre-School provision is already at capacity and if children are to be 

denied school places locally this will seriously harm community 

cohesion. This will mean that parents will need to transport their 

children to available schools outside of the locality and by car, as our 

bus service is inadequate and does not 'link' the primary schools that 

feed Bartholomew Secondary school. This will inevitably further 

increase local traffic density through the villages of Long Hanborough 

and Church Hanborough at peak travel times during the day. All our 

preschool facilities have waiting lists until 2025 and Christ Church 

Page 15



have run out of space for all their children to attend 'Sunday School'.  

 

8. The North Field is of archaeologically interest, including 

Grimm's Ditch, which has been designated as a scheduled monument 

in other locations. The site is clearly significant and must be fully 

surveyed and evaluated.  

 

In conclusion HPC feels that this proposed scheme will have a serious 

and harmful impact on the character and appearance of our 

community, in particular the setting and perceived edge of the 

settlement. It goes against many relevant sections of the NPPF and 

the harmful effects resulting from it will be experienced for many 

years to come. These effects cannot be mitigated.  

 

Furthermore, multiple parts of our infrastructure are already beyond 

capacity, with no plans to extend or enhance them. This proposal will 

only exacerbate these problems.  

 

Finally, WODC have clear plans for development across the district 

(including a rolling 5- year housing supply) and this site is not in those 

plans. What is also clear is that significant landowners could 'slow 

walk' these plans and deliberately 'collapse' the 5-year land bank, 

knowing that this would allow a 'free run' at planning applications 

across the district. This should not be allowed to happen.  

 

We hope that you can take on board our comments and that you will 

present them to Committee as necessary along with your 

recommendation. 

 

 

Major Planning Applications 

Team 

TRANSPORT  

 

No objection subject to the following: 

 

 S106 Contributions as set out in the County's response to 

West Oxfordshire District Council of 21 July 2022, but 

excluding the requirement for a contribution to the Lower 

Road cycle route;  

 An obligation to enter into a S278 agreement as set out in the 

County's response to West Oxfordshire District Council of 

21 July 2022;  

 Planning Conditions to be set out at the Reserved Matters 

stage; 

 Note should be taken of the informatives as set out in the 

County's response to West Oxfordshire District Council of 

21 July 2022.  

 

 

 

 

Page 16



 

LEAD LOCAL FLOOD AUTHORITY  

 

No objections, subject to conditions.  

 

ARCHAEOLOGY  

 

No objections, subject to conditions.  

 

EDUCATION  

 

No objections, subject to S106 contributions.  

 

WASTE MANAGEMENT  

 

No objections, subject to S106 contributions. 

 

 

ERS Air Quality We are satisfied with the response received from the applicant.  No 

objection to the application, subject to a condition. 

 

 

Cotswolds Conservation Board Having again reviewed Chapter 8 of the Environmental Statement, the 

Board wishes to maintain our holding objection in respect of this 

issue.  

 

Paragraph 8.10 of the Environmental Statement states that traffic 

counts were taken by the applicant to quantify the existing traffic 

flows on the local road network at four points in the local area. None 

of these points are located within the National Landscape. Figure 8.1 

of the Environmental Statement shows the road links assessed by the 

applicant; these do not include any roads within the National 

Landscape, including Swan Lane where the road crosses into the 

National Landscape a short distance from the site.  

 

As such, this route does not form part of the applicant's modelling 

and no assessment has been made of the current baseline traffic flows 

into and out of the National Landscape.  

 

The applicant states that their assessment demonstrates that traffic 

flows will increase by only up to 6% on most local roads outside of 

the National Landscape (with the exception of Church Road to the 

south of Long Hanborough which will see a 12% increase) and 

therefore predicted traffic flows generally fall below the 10% 

threshold cited at Section 4.5 of the Board's Tranquillity Position 

Statement. In their view, as the 10% threshold is generally not 

reached on roads outside of the National Landscape, this confirms 

that the development will not harm its tranquillity and no further 

assessment is required.  

 

Page 17



In our view, this argument is flawed. The assessment does not 

consider any roads within the National Landscape and relies upon 

baseline counts taken on busier roads (principally the A4095) located 

outside of the protected landscape which see far higher traffic flows 

than could reasonably be expected on Swan Lane. Therefore, the 

proportionate increase in traffic flows as a result of this and other 

recently consented developments on these busier roads could be less 

than on the quieter roads within the National Landscape. Such an 

assessment does not, in our opinion, confirm that the development 

will not cause harm to the tranquillity of the AONB.  

 

Accordingly, we continue to request that an assessment of the 

cumulative highways impacts in relation to the tranquillity of the 

National Landscape is carried out; it is understood that the Council 

and the applicant have agreed a list of sites to be considered in an 

assessment of cumulative impacts. 

 

 

Parish Council No Comment Received. 

 

 

Adjacent Parish Council Freeland Parish Council (FPC) object to the above planning 

application that is currently out for consultation.  

 

The initial application was split into sites north and south of the A 

4095. The southern site is now almost completed. That to the north 

was refused permission and the appeal withdrawn in 2018. The LPA 

reasoning for upholding their decision at the time of the appeal was 

that the harms of the proposal outweigh the benefits. FPC considers 

that this remains valid for the current proposal for the following 

reasons:  

 

 In terms of housing need, the large scale provision of housing 

at Salt Cross, together with that already completed or soon 

to be delivered in Long Hanborough, will offer ample 

provision for the coming 10 years.  

 This proposed development would further erode the 

character of the local area, potentially resulting in the 

coalescence of the villages of Freeland and Long Hanborough. 

FPC has always had concerns over the loss of green space 

between the villages resulting in their eventual merging. This 

was borne out by a recent survey of residents.  

 The area is immediately adjacent to the Cotswolds National 

Landscape, and therefore requires consideration as to its 

impact upon this nationally designated landscape. It also falls 

within the visually sensitive Lower Evenlode Valley character 

area, and is adjacent to the Hanborough Conservation Area. 

The site is, therefore, extremely sensitive to development.  

 In relation to transport and infrastructure, Freeland Parish 

Council consider that the proposed development will have an 

Page 18



increased detrimental impact on the already congested 

A4095.  

 An additional consideration is the strain on the local 

sewerage system. The Evenlode and its tributaries are already 

chronically polluted with phosphates, largely emanating from 

an increased local population. No further development of any 

scale should be permitted until Thames Water have upgraded 

their local facilities to remove phosphates from local works, 

e.g. that at Church Hanborough. 

 

 

Major Planning Applications 

Team 

No Comment Received. 

 

 

WODC Planning Policy 

Manager 

The WODC Policy team response is concluded as follows:  

 

Given that the District Council acknowledges that it is currently 

unable to demonstrate a 5-year supply of deliverable housing land, the 

'tilted balance' of the NPPF is engaged, whereby there is a 

presumption that planning permission will be granted unless:  

 

 The application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or 

assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for 

refusing the development proposed; or 

 Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and 

demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against 

the policies in the NPPF taken as a whole. 

 

As set out in the comments above, this does not completely negate 

the policy requirements of the Local Plan, but it does mean that less 

weight is able to be afforded to those policies of relevance to the 

application than would otherwise be the case.  

 

In this instance, particular consideration needs to be given as to 

whether the harms identified by those responding to this proposal 

'significantly and demonstrably' outweigh the benefits. The key 

benefits include the provision of additional housing to help meet the 

Council's five year housing land supply, affordable housing, potential 

for biodiversity net gain and the economic benefits development 

would bring.  

 

The potential harms include: adverse impacts on the character and 

setting of the historic environment, particularly the Conservation 

Area; the landscape impacts, especially on the AONB and Abel 

Wood; and the distance from many of the key services and facilities 

which has the potential to increase reliance on the use of the private 

car and further contribute to traffic volumes on the A4095. 

 

 

 

Page 19



 

WODC Housing Enabler The site is within the high value zone and would trigger a requirement 

under Policy H3 - Affordable Housing to provide 50% of the 

completed dwellings as affordable housing. The Planning Statement 

confirms that this requirement will be met. Policy guidance on the 

ratio of smaller to larger affordable homes will also be met. Tenure 

split and rent model are not described in the planning submission.  

 

Having examined those who are registered on the Council's 

Homeseeker+ system that have indicated a wish to rent a home in 

Long Hanborough, I can confirm the following house types are 

required to meet housing need:  

1 Bed single - 124 

1 Bed Couple - 37 

2 Bed - 68 

3 Bed - 44 

4 Bed - 8  

5+ Bed - 5  

Total  -  286  

 

Applicants can identify up to three locations when selecting their 

areas of preference. Only when an applicant makes a successful bid to 

the Homeseeker+ system will their full connection to areas within 

and the whole of West Oxfordshire be picked up.  

 

The Homeseeker + priority bandings that the 286 applicants fall 

under are as follows:  

Emergency - 1  

Gold - 9  

Silver - 46  

Bronze - 230  

Total -  286  

 

The bandings are used to assess an applicant's housing needs and are 

broadly explained as:  

Emergency = Is in immediate need of re-housing on medical grounds 

or down-sizing etc  

Gold = Has an urgent medical / welfare need / move due major 

overcrowding etc  

Silver = Significant medical or welfare needs that would be alleviated 

by a move  

Bronze = All other applicants not falling into the above categories.  

 

Affordable Housing provided on this development would make an 

important contribution to local housing need. In addition to the 286 

applicants as shown above, there are a further 2649 applicants on the 

overall waiting list who could benefit from the development of this 

site at time of writing. 

 

 

Page 20



District Ecologist No Comment Received. 

 

 

WODC - Sports After reviewing this application, in line with the Councils Facility 

Planning Models (FPM) for sports halls and swimming pools 

(conducted by Sport England in June 2021) and the draft Playing Pitch 

Strategy (due for adoption Autumn 2022), should this proposal be 

granted planning permission then the Council would require an off 

site contribution towards leisure facilities in the catchment area. 

 

 

WODC - Arts Should this proposal be granted planning permission then the Council 

would favour the following approach: 

 

An allocation of £15,750 towards public art to enhance onsite public 

spaces and infrastructure by introducing unique features to aid 

orientation and create engaging places for people/residents to meet 

and interact, socialise and keep healthy. 

 

 

Oxford Clinical Commissioning 

Group NHS 

No Comment Received. 

 

 

WODC Env Health - Uplands No Comment Received. 

 

 

WODC Env Consultation Sites No objection, subject to condition.  

Further to planning application 22/01330/OUT, at this stage I object 

to this application, as there is a clarification requirements regarding 

some aspects of the Air Quality Assessment (AQA) undertaken by 

ACCON UK. 

 

 

WODC Landscape And 

Forestry Officer 

No Comment Received. 

 

 

ERS Air Quality No Comment Received. 

 

 

TV Police-Crime Prevention 

Design Advisor 

I have reviewed the submitted documents and crime statistics for the 

area, and am pleased to see that the guidance provided by Secured by 

Design has been considered and mentioned within the DAS.  

 

At this juncture, I would like to request and encourage the applicant 

to engage with Thames Valley Police at the earliest, pre-application 

stage for all forthcoming Reserved Matters applications wherever 

possible.  

 

In order to safeguard future developments and their residents from 

crime and antisocial behaviour, I ask that crime prevention and 

Page 21



community safety is a key consideration which is specifically 

addressed within forthcoming applications. 

 

 

Thames Water Waste Comments  

 

Thames Water would advise that with regard to SURFACE WATER 

network infrastructure capacity, we would not have any objection to 

the above planning application, based on the information provided.  

 

Thames Water would advise that with regard to FOUL WATER 

sewerage network infrastructure capacity, we would not have any 

objection to the above planning application, based on the information 

provided. 

 

Water Comments  

 

Thames Water are currently working with the developer of 

application 22/01330/OUT to identify and deliver the off-site water 

infrastructure needs to serve the development. Thames Water have 

identified that some capacity exists within the water network to serve 

49 dwellings but beyond that upgrades to the water network will be 

required. Works are on-going to understand this in more detail and 

as such Thames Water feel it would be prudent for an appropriately 

worded planning condition to be attached to any approval to ensure 

development doesn't outpace the delivery of essential infrastructure. 

 

 

Natural England Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the 

proposed development will not have significant adverse impacts on 

designated sites and has no objection. 

 

 

Climate A full version of the Sustainability Assessment is available on the 

Council's website. This outlines how each of the sustainability 

standards have been addressed within the application. No objections 

raised. 

 

 

Wychwood Project No Comment Received. 

 

 

Conservation Officer No Comment Received. 

 

 

NPCU (Formerly GOSE) No Comment Received. 

 

 

Environment Agency We acknowledge that this application is accompanied by an 

Environmental Statement.  There are no constraints with regards to 

Page 22



our planning remit. Therefore, we have no objections to the 

application. 

 

 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 254 letters of objection have been received in respect of this application. The key issues raised relate 

to:  

 

 Effect on local ecology;  

 Highways;  

 Increase danger of flooding; 

 Landscape;  

 Neighbourliness;  

 Design and Layout; 

 Policy/Principle;  

 Lack of Infrastructure;  

 Impact on heritage assets;  

 Archaeology.  

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The Planning Statement is concluded as follows:  

 

3.1.1 Land north of Witney Road provides an important opportunity to deliver a high-quality 

development in a sustainable location, which currently suffers from significant housing need and 

poor affordability. West Oxfordshire District Council is unable to demonstrate a five-year supply of 

housing land and therefore the presumption within the National Planning Policy Framework in 

favour of granting planning permission for residential development on sustainable sites is engaged.  

 

3.1.2 The development will provide a sensitive extension to the village, in a sustainable location within 

walking and cycling distance of local services and amenities. The application's explicit commitments 

to high-quality design, sustainability and biodiversity net gain reflect Blenheim Estate Homes's 

aspirations to build exemplar new housing.  

 

3.1.3 The masterplan has followed a landscape-led approach, which offers significant open space and 

habitat creation to help integrate the development with its surrounding, whilst also providing 

valuable amenity space for future residents. The proposal adopts a truly sustainable approach 

through its commitment to achieve the Passivhaus standard for all new homes, aspiration to be Net 

Zero Carbon, along with providing a priority for pedestrians and cyclists and the incorporation of 

renewable energy technologies.  

 

3.1.4 In addition to the much-needed new housing, the development will also provide funding revenue to 

help maintain and restore Blenheim Estate Homes's historic assets including the World Heritage 

Site and the main estate.  

 

3.1.5 The ES and technical assessments demonstrate that there are no technical or environmental 

constraints that will prevent the development taking place. The inevitable harm associated with the 

loss of a greenfield site is moderated by the demonstrable position that:  

 

Page 23



 The area proposed for development is not of high landscape or biodiversity value and is not of 

the highest agricultural land value;  

 The development will not lead to severe impacts in terms of transportation; 

  There are no technical constraints to the development of the site, the proposals address issues 

such as infrastructure requirements, surface water attenuation and utilities; 

 The social, economic and net environmental benefits to be delivered by the development are 

significant;  

 The adverse impacts of the development, as proposed and with mitigation, do not significantly 

or demonstrably outweigh the benefits.  

 

3.1.6 In accordance with planning law and policy guidance, the planning application should be approved 

without delay.  

 

3.1.7 In summary, the proposed development has been carefully developed to deliver Blenheim Estate 

Homes's objective to create a beautiful place that people will want to live, both now and in the 

future, whilst also achieving the highest practicable levels of sustainability, biodiversity gain and 

community benefits. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4NEW High quality design 

OS5NEW Supporting infrastructure 

H3NEW Affordable Housing 

H4NEW Type and mix of new homes 

H5NEW Custom and self build housing 

T1NEW Sustainable transport 

T2NEW Highway improvement schemes 

T3NEW Public transport, walking and cycling 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

EH2 Landscape character 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH4 Public realm and green infrastructure 

EH5 Sport, recreation and childrens play 

EH7 Flood risk 

EH8 Environmental protection 

EH9 Historic environment 

EH10 Conservation Areas 

EH11 Listed Buildings 

EH13 Historic landscape character 

EH16 Non designated heritage assets 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

 

 

 

Page 24



 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 The proposal is an outline application for the erection of up to 150 dwellings (including 50% 

affordable) with access, open space and associated work on a site to the north of the Witney Road 

on the western edge of the village of Long Hanborough.   

 

5.2 The site is relatively flat, although there is a rise to the west of the site and 'dips' towards the east. 

The application site sits within an area of land which is previously undeveloped and used for arable 

agricultural purposes. The site is bounded to the north by the Millwood End Conservation area and 

to the east by the existing later 20th century residential development. The boundary of the Cotswold 

AONB is also located approximately 35m to the north of the site. To the west of the site is open 

countryside and a public right of way. The public right of way continues through the site from east to 

west, then continues northwards to the AONB boundary. To the south there is an extensive 

hedgerow and trees which abut the A4095.  

 

5.3 There are a few listed buildings located to the north of the site within the Millwood End 

Conservation area.  

 

5.4 The site is visible from the public right of way and also in private views from residential properties to 

the north and east, and from the few interceding public vantage points from the Conservation area. 

 

5.5 Consent was granted (refs: 14/1234/P/OP & 17/00578/RES) for the erection of 169 dwellings, open 

space and associated works on land to the south of Witney Road, directly opposite the site. This 

development known as 'Hanborough Gate' now been built out. It includes an newly constructed 

doctors' surgery.  

 

5.6 The drawings submitted propose to retain the extensive hedgerow and tree belt at the front of the 

site (other than the removal of a small number of trees to facilitate the access). New areas of 

woodland planting along the southern boundary of the site are also proposed. The hedgerows and 

trees will be also be retained along the western, northern and eastern boundaries alongside the 

addition of new planting. This is indicated on the proposed landscape plan.  

 

5.7 The plans also indicate that the residential development will sit north of the public right of way 

(which is to be upgraded) with open space (to include amenity green space, natural and semi-natural 

green space, parks and recreation grounds, tree and structure planting, ecological enhancements and 

natural play areas) to be provided at the front of the site adjacent to the A4095, to the rear of the 

residential development adjacent to the Millwood End Conservation area (to include space for 

allotments), and within a strip of land to the west which includes an archaeological protection area 

and an equipped play space.   

 

5.8 Archaeological surveys of the site have also identified a central linear feature referred to as 'Grimm's 

Ditch'. This is not visible above ground. Therefore, it is proposed to retain a central green corridor 

through the area identified for residential development to ensure that this is undisturbed.  

 

5.9 The new access is proposed from the A4095 near the south east corner of the site.  

 

5.10 It is envisaged that the proposed development would be up to two storeys in height and will vary in 

size and house type.  

 

Page 25



5.11 A range of supporting information has been provided with the application, and a number of 

amended/additional reports and an amended access plan has been submitted to address initial 

technical objections raised by statutory consultees.  

 

5.12 The proposal is classed as EIA development due to the proposal site area exceeding 5 hectares and 

the potential for cumulative impacts of this development on Long Hanborough and the surrounding 

area. As such an Environmental Statement has been submitted with the application to provide 

information on the likely significant environmental effects of the developer and any required 

mitigation measures which may be needed to make the development acceptable and sustainable. 

 

5.13 The scope of the Environmental statement is considered sufficient to fully assess the likely impacts 

set out within the report. In light of the responses received from the relevant technical consultees, 

your officers consider that this proposal is unlikely to be EIA development of national significance. 

 

Planning History 

 

5.14 Planning application 17/01082/OUT was submitted for the 'erection of up to 170 dwellings with 

access from Witney Road, open space and associated works'.  

 

5.15 When the application was considered the WODC Local Plan was out of date and the Council were 

unable to demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply and yours officers recommended that:  

 

'Assessing the scheme in the round, on balance, the benefits of the proposal are considered to 

outweigh the harms and therefore with reference to paragraphs 14, 49 and 134 of the NPPF the 

proposal in this case is considered, on balance, to represent an acceptable form of development. The 

application is accordingly recommended for approval subject to the detailed conditions suggested and 

the necessary legal agreements.'  

 

5.16 However, Members took a different view and the application was refused for the following reasons:  

 

1. The proposed site is located in the countryside beyond the existing settlement edge of Long 

Hanborough and lies adjacent to the Millwood End Conservation Area. It would represent an 

unacceptable incursion into the countryside that provides a rural setting for the village and 

Conservation Area and would not represent an appropriate addition to the settlement. It would 

be highly prominent and visible in public views from Witney Road and public rights of way. 

There would be a substantial impact on the character and appearance of this location, and the 

countryside would be urbanised and its tranquillity disturbed to a harmful degree. There would 

be less than substantial harm to the Conservation Area's setting and significance. The effect on 

buried archaeology is not yet fully understood and the proposal could be harmful to 

undesignated heritage assets. The proposal is therefore contrary to West Oxfordshire Local 

Plan 2011 policies BE2, BE4, BE5. BE12, NE1, NE3, and H2, emerging West Oxfordshire Local 

Plan 2031 policies OS2, H2, EH1, EH7, EH8, EH14, and EW2, and the relevant policies of the 

NPPF, in particular paragraphs 17, 58, 132, 134 and 135. 

 

 

2. The applicant has not entered into legal agreements to ensure that the development adequately 

mitigates its impact on community infrastructure, secures the provision of affordable housing, 

secures the provision and appropriate management of landscaping and open space, makes an 

appropriate contribution to public transport services and infrastructure, and public art. The local 

planning authority cannot therefore be satisfied that the impacts of the development can be 

Page 26



made acceptable. Consequently the proposal conflicts with West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2011 

Policies BE1, TLC7 and H11, emerging West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 Policies OS2, OS5, 

and H3, and paragraphs 17, 50, 69, 70, 72 and 203 of the NPPF. 

 

5.17 An appeal was lodged but was subsequently withdrawn.  

 

5.18 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

Principle 

 

5.19 This is an undeveloped, greenfield site on the north-western edge of Long Hanborough.  

 

5.20 In terms of the principle of residential development in this location, the most relevant policies of 

the Local Plan 2031 are Policies OS2 and H2. Dealing with each in turn:  

 

Policy OS2 - Locating Development in the Right Places  

 

5.21 Policy OS2 adopts a 'hierarchal' approach with the majority of future homes and job opportunities 

to be focused on the main service centres of Witney, Carterton and Chipping Norton.  

 

5.22 Long Hanborough is defined as one of a number of rural service centres along with Bampton, 

Burford, Charlbury, Eynsham and Woodstock. A new rural service centre will be created through 

the Oxfordshire Cotswolds Garden Village (now known as 'Salt Cross') to the north of the A40 

near Eynsham.  

 

5.23 Of these rural service centres, Policy OS2 identifies Eynsham as having a particular role to play in 

meeting the housing needs of the District and Oxford City and scope for a 'reasonable scale of 

development' at Woodstock.  

 

5.24 Burford and Charlbury are identified as being 'relatively constrained' by their AONB location and 

Bampton and Long Hanborough are identified as having 'a more restricted range of services and 

facilities' and thus suitable for a 'modest level of development to help reinforce their existing roles'. 

 

5.25 Two residential allocations are proposed at Long Hanborough, one of which (Oliver's Garage - 25 

dwellings) is under construction with the other (Land at Myrtle Farm - 50 dwellings) yet to come 

forward although expected to be developed within the plan period to 2031.  

 

5.26 In addition to these two allocated sites, since the adoption of the Local Plan, there have been a 

number of other major residential developments permitted and built out or under construction at 

Long Hanborough. 

 

5.27 Also of relevance to the principle of development in this location are the general principles set out 

in Policy OS2. As these are general principles which are intended to apply to all forms of 

development, not just residential schemes, they remain applicable irrespective of the 5-year housing 

land supply position.  

 

5.28 Those listed below are particularly relevant and need careful consideration for this sensitive site 

and significant proposal:  

 

Page 27



5.29 All development should: 

 

 Be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its context having regard to the potential 

cumulative impact of development in the locality; 

 Form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or the 

character of the area;  

 Avoid the coalescence and loss of identity of separate settlements; 

 As far as is reasonably possible protect or enhance the local landscape and the setting of the 

settlement/s; 

 Not involve the loss of an area of open space or any other feature that makes an important 

contribution to the character or appearance of the area; 

 Conserve and enhance the natural, historic and built environment; and  

 In the AONB, give great weight to conserving landscape and scenic beauty and comply with 

national policy concerning major development. 

 

5.30 Also of relevance to the principle of residential development in this location is Policy H2 - Delivery 

of New Homes which sets out the overall local plan housing requirement and how this will be 

phased over the plan period to 2031. It also set out the specific circumstances in which new 

dwellings will be permitted at rural service centres including Long Hanborough.  

 

5.31 Given the application site is not allocated for development and comprises an undeveloped, 

greenfield site adjoining the built area of the village, the most relevant criterion is: 

 

 On undeveloped land adjoining the built up area where convincing evidence is presented to 

demonstrate that it is necessary to meet identified housing needs, it is in accordance with the 

distribution of housing set out in Policy H1 and is in accordance with other policies in the plan in 

particular the general principles in Policy OS2. 

 

The Development Plan 

 

5.32 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires applications for planning 

permission to be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise.  Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

provides that the local planning authority shall have regard to the provisions of the development 

plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations.  In the case of 

West Oxfordshire, the Development Plan is the Local Plan 2031 adopted in September 2018. 

 

National Policy/Guidance  

 

5.33 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out the Government's planning policies and 

how these are expected to be applied. The NPPF also sets out a presumption in favour of 

sustainable development and states that development proposals that accord with an up-to-date 

development plan should be approved without delay. The NPPF (Paragraph 11d) goes on to say that 

where policies that are most important for determining the application are out-of-date, permission 

should be granted unless: 

 

I. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or  

II. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, 

when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole.  

Page 28



 

5.34 The NPPF requires local planning authorities to demonstrate an up-to-date five year supply of 

deliverable housing sites. Where there has been a persistent under-delivery of housing, a 20% buffer 

is applied. Where local authorities cannot demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing 

sites, paragraph 11 of the NPPF sets out that housing policies contained within development plans 

should not be considered up-to-date (identified in footnote 8).  

 

5.35 In a recent appeal decision (Land East of Barns Lane, Burford) the Inspector found that the Council 

cannot currently demonstrate a 5-year supply of housing land.  As such, the provisions of paragraph 

11d) of the NPPF are engaged.  

 

5.36 In view of the above it is clear that the decision-making process for the determination of this 

application is therefore to assess whether the adverse impacts of granting planning permission for 

the proposed development would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits or whether 

there are specific policies in the framework that protect areas or assets of particular importance 

which provide a clear reason for refusing the proposed development. 

 

Housing Mix 

 

5.37 The proposed housing mix is only illustrative at this stage. However, the indicative information 

submitted would accord with the required housing mix outlined in policy H4 of the Local Plan.  

 

5.38 Further, 50% of the development is proposed as on site affordable housing which is considered to 

comply with policy H3 of the Local Plan. The Council's Housing Enabling Officer has confirmed that 

the policy guidance on the ratio of smaller to larger affordable homes will also be met. 

 

5.39 In addition, policy H5 requires all housing developments of 100 or more dwellings to include 5% of 

the plots to be serviced and made available for custom and self-build which is proposed.  

 

5.40 Both would be secured via a legal agreement if Members were minded to approve the application.  

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.41 As the application is for outline consent only, no definitive layout, elevation or floor plans have 

been provided.  

 

5.42 However, illustrative plans have been provided showing that a scheme of 150 dwellings could be 

comfortably accommodated on the site while taking into consideration the other site constraints. 

The area identified for proposed built form is set away from the Conservation Area and is set back 

from the Witney Road behind existing landscaping with areas of open green space for biodiversity 

enhancements and retention of archaeological features. The density parameter plan submitted 

indicates that there would be an average net residential density of 33.7 dwellings per hectare within 

the area for residential development. This is considered to be appropriate for the village, while also 

responding to local and national planning policy guidance to make the best and most efficient use of 

land. The plans also indicate that building heights would not exceed 10m in order to limit the wider 

visual impact of the development and to respond to the existing built form to the east.  

 

5.43 Similar to the previous application (ref: 17/01082/OUT) your officers have concerns about the 

overall connectivity and legibility of the proposed development. The site is to be accessed from the 

one access in the south eastern corner of the site with no points of connection or other links into 

Page 29



the settlement to the east via Bolsover Close or Millwood End to the north. However, your 

officers accept that the constraints of the site are such that there are no available connections to 

make. Further, it is acknowledged that there is an existing right of way through the site which 

would connect the development to the north, which would help link the site to the village by foot 

via the public rights of way network and for recreation to the countryside beyond. 

 

Landscape impact 

 

5.44 The site lies within the Lower Evenlode character area, as identified in the West Oxfordshire 

Landscape Assessment. The landscape type is semi-enclosed rolling vale farmland.  The principal 

factors that potentially threaten landscape quality in this area include: intrusion from built 

development; and expansion of rural settlements and suburbanisation of the wider countryside. 

 

5.45 As part of the Environmental Statement submitted, a detailed Landscape and Visual impact 

assessment has been carried out identifying the key landscape-related planning designations, as well 

as relevant nature conservation and cultural heritage designations that will also have an impact in 

terms of the landscape. 

 

5.46 The LVIA states that the site is largely visually contained, with the majority of views limited to the 

immediate area. The gently undulating landscape, combined with intervening woodland blocks, 

established tree belts, hedgerows and the settlements of Long Hanborough and Freeland, truncate 

mid-range to distant views.  

 

5.47 The development would have a visual impact locally, in replacing open countryside with an amount 

of housing which would be visible in both public and private views. There is a very clear boundary 

formed by the settlement edge and domestic boundary treatments on the north and eastern side of 

the proposed development area. It is noted that as a result, the loss of those open countryside 

views and the rural setting to this part of the village would be altered. However, there are no rights 

to protection of private views, and the harm to the rural setting would have to be very much 

weighed in the balance against the wider public benefits arising from the scheme. 

 

5.48 The proposal will involve the removal of stretches of the hedge line and trees along the south of 

the site to make way for the means of access and necessary engineering required to address the 

slight change in land levels. It is noted that this will have an urbanising impact on this approach to 

the village, however, as above; this limited harm must be weighed against the wider public benefits 

of the scheme. 

 

5.49 Taking the site as a whole trees and hedgerows would be substantially retained and development 

would be set back from these features, allowing appropriate tree protection measures to be 

employed where necessary. 

 

5.50 More detailed landscaping proposals for the whole of the site would need to be provided at the 

reserved matters stage to show tree species, size and planting density. This would also have to 

accord with the details required by the Council's Ecologist for biodiversity reasons. The creation of 

a landscaped margin and the copse area to the site's western edge will be particularly important in 

reinforcing the separation between built form and agricultural landscape to the west. The 

agricultural land in this location forms a rural setting for Long Hanborough and therefore the 

buffering and screening are important components of the proposed scheme. 

 

 

Page 30



 

 

Impact on the setting of the AONB 

 

5.51 As stated above, the boundary of the Cotswold AONB is located approximately 35m to the north 

of the site. 

 

5.52 The Cotswold Conservation Board has raised a holding objection to the application due to 

concerns over the potential impact of the development on the Cotswolds National Landscape and 

the tranquillity of the AONB directly or in combination with other developments increasing traffic 

flows by 10% or more in the roads 'in and directly adjacent to the AONB'.  

 

5.53 The Environmental Statement (ES) submitted includes a chapter on traffic generation, including the 

traffic from the development in isolation and in combination with other committed developments in 

the area. It concludes that the proposed development will lead to negligible increases (generally 6%) 

in traffic flows on all of the local roads around the development, apart from Church Road where a 

12% increase is predicted. As Church Road is not in or adjacent to the AONB, the ES confirms that 

the development will not cause harm to the tranquillity of the AONB in this regard.  

 

5.54 Further, whilst there will undoubtedly be some landscape impact on the rural character of this part 

of the village, the impact on the AONB will be very limited indeed given distance the proposal is 

form the AONB boundary, and the containment of the development to the lower part of the site. 

Your officers consider the impact on the 'rural' approach could be successfully mitigated against and 

indeed, there are opportunities to for both landscape and biodiversity enhancements which would 

be considered, on balance, to outweigh this harm. 

 

Heritage 

 

5.55 The site adjoins of the Millwood End Conservation area which comprises of a number of traditional 

buildings, some listed, interspersed with more recent development to the east of the development 

site. 

 

5.56 As the site adjoins the Millwood End Conservation area, the Local Planning Authority is required to 

consider section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as 

amended, which states that, with respect to buildings or other land in a Conservation Area, special 

attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of 

that area.  

 

5.57 Further, in light of the nearby listed buildings, the LPA is also required to take account of section 

66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states 

that considering development which affects a listed building, the local planning authority shall have 

special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or of any features of special 

architectural or historic interest which it possesses. Paragraph 199 of the National Planning Policy 

Framework states that when considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance 

of a designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset's conservation. 

 

5.58 Your officers consider that the application site and its rural setting forms part of the setting to the 

village and, thus, part of the setting of the Conservation Area. Also, the Conservation Area derives 

part of its significance from its setting, in this case, a setting which contributes to the rural character 

Page 31



of the village. As such development within this setting must be assessed within the above 

framework. 

 

5.59 Your officers are of the opinion that the proposed development would result in a low to medium 

level of less than substantial harm to the setting of the heritage assets due to the residential 

development being set away and screened from the Conservation Area and listed buildings. There 

are limited public view points from within the Conservation Area where the proposal would be 

highly visible, as the Conservation area itself is well contained and the proposed development is set 

away and will be lower lying than the immediate public vantage points. 

 

5.60 Paragraph 202 of the NPPF states that where a development proposal will lead to less than 

substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed 

against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable 

use.  

 

5.61 In this case, your officers are of the opinion that there are wider public benefits coming forward 

from the application in terms of 50% affordable housing provision, biodiversity enhancements and 

other financial contributions to facilities for the local community. When taking this in the balance, 

the less than substantial harm identified is considered to be outweighed by the wider public benefits 

arising from the proposal. 

 

Archaeology 

 

5.62 The site is located in an area of archaeological interest set out in the cultural heritage chapter of 

the Environmental Statement submitted with this application. The northern part of the site was 

subject to an archaeological geophysical survey and trenched evaluation as part of a previous 

application for the site. These investigations recorded a large ditch crossing the site from north to 

south and an area of enclosures and an undated pit. 

 

5.63 The County Archaeologist raised an initial objection and requested an archaeological evaluation to 

assess the impact on the potential continuation of Grimm's Ditch from the proposed play area and 

attenuation pond. 

 

5.64 Following discussions with the applicant's archaeological consultant this proposed play area has now 

been relocated away from the area of this potential continuation of this significant feature. The 

County Archaeologist has confirmed that this will remove this possible impact and will preserve 

this feature in situ. The revised landscape plan also highlights that the areas of Iron Age settlement 

identified from the archaeological evaluation and geophysical survey will be preserved within green 

space and will therefore not be impacted by this development. 

 

5.65 The prosed development will preserve the majority of Grimm's Ditch within the site and the 

swales, roadways and planting scheme have been designed to avoid impacting this feature along 

most of the route. This is set out in the revised design and access statement part 7. 

 

5.66 In light of this, the application is considered to be acceptable in this regard subject to a condition 

ensuring the implementation of a staged programme of archaeological investigation to be 

undertaken ahead of the period of construction. 

 

 

 

Page 32



 

Biodiversity 

 

5.67 Policy EH3 sets out that the biodiversity of West Oxfordshire shall be protected and enhanced to 

achieve an overall net gain in biodiversity and minimise impacts on geodiversity. This includes 

protecting and mitigating for impacts on priority habitats, protected species and priority species, 

both for their importance individually and as part of a wider network. All major and minor 

applications should demonstrate a net gain in biodiversity where possible. For major applications 

this should be demonstrated in a quantifiable way through the use of a Biodiversity Impact 

Assessment Calculator (BIAC) based on that described in the DEFRA Biodiversity Offsetting 

guidance or a suitably amended version.  

 

5.68 Following initial comments from the Council's Ecologist, all required biodiversity survey work has 

been carried out and further details of the proposed biodiversity enhancements and net gain 

provision have been submitted.  

 

5.69 The final response from the Council's Ecologist remains outstanding. An update will be provided to 

Members either verbally or within the additional representations report regarding this matter. 

  

Highways 

 

5.70 Access would be taken from the A4095 by way of one estate road. The site is located within a 

reasonable walking and cycling distance of the village facilities, although convenient pedestrian and 

cycle access has not been fully demonstrated with regard to the connectivity to the north and west.  

 

5.71 The applicants have indicated that this is not possible due to the arrangement of built form and 

private properties which bound the site at these points. A further pedestrian footway is proposed 

from the rear of the bus stop along Witney Road to join up with the existing right of way that runs 

east to west through the site.  

 

5.72 The Local Highway Authority raised an initial objection to the proposals for the following reasons:  

 

 Insufficient information and analysis regarding Bladon roundabout;  

 Insufficient information is provided regarding the site access proposals.  

 

5.73 Following this objection, revised and additional information was submitted and the County has 

confirmed that their concerns have been overcome.  

 

5.74 The Local Highway Authority has states that the proposed development, whilst towards the 

western edge of Long Hanborough, is in an accessible location and is relatively well connected to 

the village. Local amenities such as a local store, primary school etc. are within walking and cycling 

distance, and the site is in close proximity to bus stops which provide services to Witney, 

Woodstock and Eynsham. Long Hanborough also has a rail station. Therefore, access to public 

transport options is available. It is also noted that applicant proposes to implement a pedestrian 

crossing island near to the new priority junction into the site, as well as creation of a new footpath 

and cycling south of the site to connect to the existing footway / cycle way along the A4095 Witney 

Road. 

 

Page 33



5.75 In light of the information submitted, the Local Highway Authority has raised no objections to the 

application subject to S106 contributions towards: Strategic highway infrastructure along the A44 

corridor; 

 Support and improvement of bus services 233 and 411 at Long Hanborough;  

 Provision of real time information displays at bus stops adjacent to the site;  

 Monitoring of the Travel Plan over a five year period;  

 Improvements to the public rights of way network in the vicinity of the development in the 

impact area up to 2km from the site.  

  

5.76 It is also recommended that the applicants enter into a S278 Agreement to secure the site access 

junction. Informatives have also been set out by the County and planning conditions are to be 

agreed at the Reserved Matters stage.  

 

Residential Amenities 

 

5.77 Your officers consider that it is possible that 150 units could be accommodated on the site and 

there is no reason to believe that suitable interface distances and relationships as regards adequate 

light could not be provided in respect of the application site itself, given the indicative layout 

provided. These matters would be fully assessed and taken account of at reserved matters stage. 

There is also no reason to believe that existing properties to the north and east would be materially 

affected in terms of overlooking or loss of light as a result of the siting of the proposed dwellings. 

However, the outlook from some properties in particular, would be affected in terms of the loss of 

an attractive view, but effect on a private view is not material to this assessment.  

 

5.78 It is acknowledged that short term effects can be experienced during the construction phase, such 

as construction vehicle movements, noise from construction activities, and pollution such as dust. 

However, such impacts arising could be ameliorated through compliance with a construction 

management plan. The tranquillity of the area would undoubtedly be affected by a development of 

this scale on a site in the countryside and this has a bearing in terms of public amenity and experience 

of the rural environment by walkers etc.. However, in terms of private amenity it is not possible to 

say that the development would impact on existing residents in a materially harmful way as regards 

noise and disturbance. It is likely that suitable boundary treatments and planting would perform a 

function as acoustic barriers to nearby residents. A certain level of activity is already experienced by 

existing residents in terms of the layout, density and relationship of existing housing to each other 

and individual proximity to the highway (those on the Witney Road). 

 

Drainage 

 

5.79 Following the submission of additional information in response to an initial objection, the Local 

Lead Flood Authority has raised no objections to the application, subject to the imposition of a pre-

commencement surface water drainage condition.  

 

Air Quality 

 

5.80 Additional technical information was also submitted to address a holding objections received from 

the Council's Environmental Regulatory Service regarding some of the points raised in the Air 

Quality Assessment submitted.  

 

5.81 The Council's ERS team have now confirmed that the application is acceptable in this regard subject 

to a condition requiring the submission of a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) 

Page 34



to minimise the creation and impact of noise, vibration, dust and light spill/glare; provide details of 

the hours of operation; and, detail waste manage arrangements. The plan shall cover all aspects of the 

works, including, site preparation, groundwork and construction phases of the development. It shall 

also include measures to manage heavy/large goods vehicle access to the site and measures to be 

employed to prevent the egress of mud, water and other detritus onto the public and any non-

adopted highways. 

 

Infrastructure 

 

5.82 A number of objections received refer to the strain of the development on infrastructure and 

services in the village arising from the disproportionate growth of new housing in recent years, in 

particular education provision.  

 

5.83 In terms of education, pre-school provision in Long Hanborough is already over-subscribed. Given 

he scale of housing growth expected in Hanborough, additional capacity will be required to ensure 

that all families can access pre-school education within the village. Increased capacity is likely to result 

from expansion of an existing provision - work is ongoing to identify the most suitable project to 

achieve this aim. An Early Education Contribution of £188,780 is required by the County Council.  

 

5.84 With regard to Primary education, the development lies within the designated area of Hanborough 

Manor Primary School, which has very recently expanded to 1.5 form entry (total capacity of 315) in 

order to accommodate planned and permitted development in the local area. A proportion of the 

cost of this expansion was forward funded by Oxfordshire County Council. Since this development 

will require some of the capacity created by this expansion, it is required that it will contribute 

£1,500,180 towards the cost of the project. 

 

5.85 In terms of Secondary Education, the proposed development lies within the designated area of 

Bartholomew School, which has capacity for 1,300 pupils, and as of January 2022 had 1,328 pupils on 

roll. The existing school could not, therefore accommodate the scale of pupil generation from the 

proposed development on top of that which will be generated by already permitted development.  

 

5.86 The manner of expansion of capacity to serve Eynsham's growth, including this proposed 

development, is planned to be through the construction of a new 600-place secondary education 

facility on a site within the Garden Village. The Eynsham Partnership Academy trust intends to submit 

a business case to the Regional Schools Commissioner for approval to operate this as a satellite site 

to enable Bartholomew School to increase its secondary education capacity from 1,300 places to 

1,900 places. If this is not approved, then an academy sponsor would be sought to operate it as a 

standalone new 600-place secondary school.  

 

5.87 This Site should pay £1,163,295 towards the land and building costs for the new secondary 

education facility, proportionate to its expected pupil generation. The land contribution would be 

repaid to the host site providing the facility. 

 

5.88 A financial contribution of £80,767 is also required for expansion to special education provision 

commensurate with the need arising from the development. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 35



 

S106 Matters  

 

5.89 The applicant has referred to the provision of 50% affordable housing which is a policy compliant 

contribution. This will be comprised of affordable housing with the exact mix to be the subject of a 

legal agreement.  

 

5.90 The provision of 5% self/custom build dwellings will also be secured via the legal agreement.  

 

5.91 Matters relating to biodiversity net gain and the provision of allotments, parks and recreation, play 

areas and open space will also be secured via the legal agreement.   

 

5.92 Various on and off site contributions have been sought, as set out in the consultee responses. The 

applicant has confirmed they are willing to enter any required Section 106 agreement with 

subsequent head of terms to be agreed. Those contributions are set out below;  

 

OCC Education  

 

5.93 Early Education contribution- £188,780 

 

5.94 Primary Education contribution - £1,500,180 

 

5.95 Secondary Education contribution- £1,163,295 

 

5.96 Secondary Land contribution - £116,655 

 

5.97 Special Education contribution - £80,767 

 

5.98 Total: £3,049,677 

 

OCC Highways 

 

5.99 Section 278 agreement to secure new site access junction on to A4095 

 

5.100 S106 agreement to secure:  

 

 Strategic highway infrastructure along the A44 corridor - £434,829  

 Support and improvement of bus services 233 and 411 at Long Hanborough - £169,950 

 Provision of real time information displays at bus stops adjacent to the site - £18,712 

 Monitoring of the Travel Plan over a five year period - £1,558 

 Improvements to the public rights of way network in the vicinity of the development in the 

impact area up to 2km from the site - £25,000. 

 

Waste Management   

 

5.101 A contribution of £14,094 towards the expansion and efficiency of Household Waste Recycling 

Centres.  

 

Public Art  

 

Page 36



5.102 An allocation of £15,750 towards public art to enhance onsite public spaces and infrastructure by 

introducing unique features to aid orientation and create engaging places for people/residents to 

meet and interact, socialise and keep healthy. 

 

Leisure Facilities  

 

5.103 Sport Hall provision of £65,165 toward the cost of a replacement or improvement to Sports Halls 

in the catchment area. 

 

5.104 Swimming pool provision of £71,935 towards the cost of a replacement or improvement to pools 

in the catchment area. 

 

5.105 Outdoor pitch provision £268,500 towards improvements to pitch provision in the catchment 

area. 

 

5.106 Figures are index-linked to second quarter 2022 using the BCIS All in Tender Price Index 

published by RICS. 

 

5.107 A contribution towards the Council's Monitoring Cost is also to be agreed.  

 

Other Matters 

 

5.108 Your officers have taken into consideration the projected delivery of the development in the 

wider planning balance.  

 

5.109 Whilst it is an outline rather than a full application, given the scale of development and the track 

record of the applicant in terms of delivery, it is reasonable to assume that if permitted, a good 

proportion of the 150 dwellings would be completed within the next 5 years.  

 

5.110 The applicant has confirmed that the intention is for construction of the development to start in 

Spring 2024 and be completed early in 2028.  This assumes that outline planning permission is 

granted this year.  In order to provide the members with further reassurance over the early delivery 

of housing on the site, the applicant is also willing to accept conditions, which impose shorter time 

periods for the submission of reserved matters and implementation of the development than those 

set out in the Planning Practice Guidance.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.111 The site is located immediately adjacent to the village of Long Hanborough, which provides a 

range of amenities and is considered a suitable location for some new development. This is 

recognised in policy OS2 of the Local Plan, and two specific site allocations are made.  

 

5.112 In light of the above assessment, your officers consider that with suitable conditions and details at 

reserved matters stage, a suitable scheme could assimilate in to the landscape in this location without 

being highly prominent in wider public views or harmful to the AONB.  

 

5.113 The new point of access to the highway, provision of pedestrian and cycle linkages, ability to 

access public transport, and predicted vehicle movements are, on balance, acceptable and no 

objection on these matters is raised by OCC Highways. However, a S278 agreement will be required 

to secure the highways works and improvements that are necessary to facilitate the scheme. In 

Page 37



addition, S106 financial contributions are requested to off-set or mitigate the highways impacts of the 

development and improve public transport. Subject to compliance with such agreements the 

proposal, insofar as those elements listed, would comply with adopted local and national policy. 

 

5.114 There would be no unacceptable impact on the residential amenity of neighbouring properties as 

regards privacy and loss of light, based on the details of the amended illustrative layout plan as 

submitted, and the indicative layout for the site as a whole. However, this matter would need further 

consideration as part of any future reserved matters application.  

 

5.115 With regard to the impacts on heritage assets, it is adjudged there would be a low to medium 

level less than substantial harm to the Millwood End Conservation Area and setting of the nearby 

listed building. This harm, under paragraph 202 of the NPPF, would need to be outweighed by public 

benefits. In this regard, the provision of 50% affordable housing, in addition to the biodiversity net 

gain and enhancements, and all of the financial contributions listed above, is considered significant in 

terms of weighing against the planning balance. As is the contribution that the 150 dwellings would 

make towards the Council's housing land supply.  

 

5.116 Impacts of the development regarding social infrastructure can be addressed through a legal 

agreement, and there are no technical objections from consultee's on these grounds.  

 

5.117 Subject to the Council's Ecologist's final response, it is anticipated that there would be no direct 

impact on protected species and appropriate mitigation and enhancements for wildlife can be secured 

by condition. The proposed biodiversity net gain would also be secured via the legal agreement. The 

overall ecological value of the site would be enhanced compared to the current arable cultivation. 

 

5.118 The development would undoubtedly represent a major change in character of the site from 

agricultural to housing. Its visual effects cannot be entirely mitigated, but the harm would be for the 

most part localised and ameliorated by the position of the development against an existing urban 

edge of the late 1960s housing development. The retention of key landscape features (hedgerow and 

tree species), and reinforcement with additional planting, the introduction play spaces and managed 

'green corridors' will, over time mature into scheme which will provide wider biodiversity 

enhancements and habitats. Overall the plans for landscaping are considered acceptable. 

 

5.119 The consideration of material factors in this case results in a very finely balanced 

recommendation. The delivery of up to 150 dwellings, including 50% affordable housing provision, to 

contribute to wider housing needs, the net gain in Biodiversity, and financial contributions to support 

the school expansion, public art, community sports provision and public transport improvements 

would represent significant planning benefits. On the other hand, there remains a significant concern 

regarding the overall sustainability of this proposal and the population growth that Long Hanborough 

has been subject to over the last five years. This 'macro' issue your officer's note is of concern. 

However when the individual 'development management' issues are addressed in turn, none result in 

any significant harm which would, on their own warrant, refusal of the application, for the reasons set 

out earlier in the report and in the absence of an adopted plan and with paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF 

engaged, the macro concern is not itself so harmful to justify refusal at this point in time.   

 

5.120 Assessing the scheme in the round, on balance, the benefits of the proposal are considered to 

outweigh the harms and therefore with reference to paragraphs 11(d) and 202 of the NPPF the 

proposal in this case is considered, on balance, to represent an acceptable form of development. The 

application is accordingly recommended for provisional approval subject to the Council's Ecologist 

Page 38



confirming that the additional information regarding biodiversity net gain is acceptable, detailed 

conditions suggested and the necessary legal agreements. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

1. (a) Application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning 

Authority before the expiration of two years from the date of this permission; 

and 

(b) The development hereby permitted shall be begun either before the expiration of four years 

from the date of this permission, or before the expiration of two years from the date of 

approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved, whichever is the later. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning 

Act 1990 as amended. 

 

2.   Details of the layout, scale, appearance, and landscaping, (herein called the reserved matters) 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any 

development begins and the development shall be carried out as approved. 

 

REASON: The application is not accompanied by such details. 

 

3. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

4. A Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to, and approved in 

writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any work on site. The 

CEMP shall: identify the steps and procedures that will be implemented to minimise the creation 

and impact of noise, vibration, dust and light spill/glare; provide details of the hours of operation; 

and, detail waste manage arrangements. The plan shall cover all aspects of the works, including, 

site preparation, groundwork and construction phases of the development. It shall also include 

measures to manage heavy/large goods vehicle access to the site and measures to be employed 

to prevent the egress of mud, water and other detritus onto the public and any non-adopted 

highways. 

 

REASON: To protect the amenity of the locality, especially for people living and/or working in 

Long Hanborough. 

 

5. Construction shall not begin until/prior to the approval; a detailed surface water drainage 

scheme for the site, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. The scheme shall be subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved 

details before the development is completed. The scheme shall include: 

 

 A compliance report to demonstrate how the scheme complies with the "Local Standards 

and Guidance for Surface Water Drainage on Major Development in Oxfordshire"; 

 Full drainage calculations for all events up to and including the 1 in 100 year plus 40% 

climate change; 

 A Flood Exceedance Conveyance Plan; 

 Comprehensive infiltration testing across the site to BRE DG 365 (if applicable) 

Page 39



 Detailed design drainage layout drawings of the SuDS proposals including cross-section 

details; 

  Detailed maintenance management plan in accordance with Section 32 of CIRIA C753 

including maintenance schedules for each drainage element; 

 Details of how water quality will be managed during construction and post development in 

perpetuity; 

 Confirmation of any outfall details; and 

 Consent for any connections into third party drainage systems.  

 

REASON: To ensure the proper provision for surface water drainage and/ or to ensure flooding 

is not exacerbated in the locality (National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice 

Guidance). If the scope of surface water drainage is not agreed before works commence, it 

could affect either the approved layout or completed works.  

 

6. Prior to first occupation, a record of the installed SuDS and site wide drainage scheme shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for deposit with the Lead 

Local Flood Authority Asset Register. The details shall include: 

 

(a) As built plans in both .pdf and .shp file format; 

(b) Photographs to document each key stage of the drainage system when installed on site; 

(c) Photographs to document the completed installation of the drainage structures on site; 

(d) The name and contact details of any appointed management company information. 

 

REASON: To ensure the proper provision for surface water drainage and/ or to ensure flooding 

is not exacerbated in the locality (National Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice 

Guidance). 

 

7.   Prior to any demolition and the commencement of the development a professional 

archaeological organisation acceptable to the Local Planning Authority shall prepare an 

Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation, relating to the application site area, which shall 

be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To safeguard the recording of archaeological matters within the site in accordance 

with the NPPF (2021). 

 

8. Following the approval of the Written Scheme of Investigation referred to in condition 7, and 

prior to any demolition on the site and the commencement of the development (other than in 

accordance with the agreed Written Scheme of Investigation), a staged programme of 

archaeological evaluation and mitigation shall be carried out by the commissioned archaeological 

organisation in accordance with the approved Written Scheme of Investigation. The programme 

of work shall include all processing, research and analysis necessary to produce an accessible and 

useable archive and a full report for publication which shall be submitted to the Local Planning 

Authority within two years of the completion of the archaeological fieldwork. 

 

REASON: To safeguard the identification, recording, analysis and archiving of heritage assets 

before they are lost and to advance understanding of the heritage assets in their wider context 

through publication and dissemination of the evidence in accordance with the NPPF (2021). 

 

9. There shall be no occupation beyond that of 49 dwellings until confirmation has  been provided 

that either: 

Page 40



 

 all water network upgrades required to accommodate the additional demand to serve the 

development have been completed; or 

 a development and infrastructure  phasing plan has been agreed with Thames Water to 

allow additional development to be occupied.  

 

Where a development and infrastructure phasing plan is agreed no occupation of those 

additional dwellings shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed development and 

infrastructure phasing plan. 

 

REASON: The development may lead to low/no water pressures and network reinforcement 

works are anticipated to be necessary to ensure that sufficient capacity is made available to 

accommodate additional demand anticipated from the new development. Any necessary 

reinforcement works will be necessary in order to avoid low/no water pressure issues. 

 

10. No development shall take place until a site investigation of the nature and extent of 

contamination has been carried out in accordance with a methodology which has previously 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The results of the site 

investigation shall be made available to the local planning authority before any development 

begins. If any significant contamination is found during the site investigation, a report specifying 

the measures to be taken to remediate the site to render it suitable for the development hereby 

permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority before 

any development begins. 

 

The Remediation Scheme, as agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be fully 

implemented in accordance with the approved timetable of works and before the development 

hereby permitted is first occupied. Any variation to the scheme shall be agreed in writing with 

the Local Planning Authority in advance of works being undertaken. On completion of the 

works the developer shall submit to the Local Planning Authority written confirmation that all 

works were completed in accordance with the agreed details. If, during the course of 

development, any contamination is found which has not been identified in the site investigation, 

additional measures for the remediation of this contamination shall be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority. The remediation of the site shall incorporate 

the approved additional measures.  

 

REASON: To ensure any contamination of the site is identified and appropriately remediated. 

Relevant Policies: West Oxfordshire Local Planning Policy EH8 and Section 15 of the NPPF. 

 

11. No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until the means to ensure a maximum water 

consumption of 110 litres use per person per day, in accordance with policy OS3, has been 

complied with for that dwelling and retained in perpetuity thereafter. 

 

REASON: To improve the sustainability of the dwellings in accordance with policy OS3 of the 

West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



INFORMATIVES :- 

 

1. The Advance Payments Code (APC), Sections 219 -225 of the Highways Act, is in force in the 

county to ensure financial security from the developer to off-set the frontage owners' liability 

for private street works, typically in the form of a cash deposit or bond. 

 

Should a developer wish for a street or estate to remain private then to secure exemption from 

the APC procedure a 'Private Road Agreement' must be entered into with the County Council 

to protect the interests of prospective frontage owners. 

 

Alternatively the developer may wish to consider adoption of the estate road under Section 38 

of the Highways Act. 

 

Prior to commencement of development, a separate consent must be obtained from the 

County's Road Agreements Team for the new highway vehicular access under S278 of the 

Highway Act. Contact: 01865 815700; RoadAgreements@oxfordshire.gov.uk. 

 

2. Please note that this consent does not override the statutory protection afforded to species 

protected under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the 

Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), or any other relevant 

legislation such as the Wild Mammals Act 1996 and Protection of Badgers Act 1992. 

 

All British bat species are protected under The Conservation of Habitats and Species 

Regulations 2017 (as amended), which implements the EC Directive 92/43/EEC in the United 

Kingdom, and the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended). This protection extends to 

individuals of the species and their roost features, whether occupied or not. A derogation 

licence from Natural England would be required before any works affecting bats or their roosts 

are carried out.  

 

All British birds (while nesting, building nests, sitting on eggs and feeding chicks), their nests and 

eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are protected by law under Section 1 of the Wildlife and 

Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) and the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000. Works 

that will impact upon active birds' nests should be undertaken outside the breeding season to 

ensure their protection, i.e. works should only be undertaken between August and February, or 

only after the chicks have fledged from the nest.  

 

In the event that your proposals could potentially affect a protected species, or if evidence of 

protected species is found during works, then you should seek the advice of a suitably qualified 

and experienced ecologist and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to 

commencing works (with regard to bats). 

 

3. Applicants are strongly encouraged to minimise energy demand, and take climate action, 

through fitting: 

 

 Electricity-fed heating systems and renewable energy, for example solar panels and heat pumps; 

thus avoiding fossil fuel based systems, for example gas boilers 

 Wall, ceiling, roof, and floor insulation, and ventilation 

  High performing triple glazed windows and airtight frames 

 Energy and water efficient appliances and fittings 

 Water recycling measures 

Page 42



 Sustainably and locally sourced materials  

 

For further guidance, please visit:  

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-permission/make-a-planning-

application/sustainability-standards-checklist/  

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/environment/climate-action/how-to-achieve-net-zero-carbon-homes/ 

 

4. The proposed development is located within 15m of Thames Waters underground assets, as such 

the development could cause  the assets to fail if appropriate measures are not taken. Please read 

our guide 'working near our  assets' to ensure your workings are in line with the necessary 

processes you need to follow if you're  considering working above or near our pipes or other 

structures.  

 

https://www.thameswater.co.uk/developers/larger-scale-developments/planning-your-

development/working-near-our-pipes   

 

Should you require further information please contact Thames Water.  

Email: developer.services@thameswater.co.uk  

 

 

 

Contact Officer: Stephanie Eldridge 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 2nd November 2022 

Page 43

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-permission/make-a-planning-
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-permission/make-a-planning-
https://www.thameswater.co.uk/developers/larger-scale-developments/planning-your-development/working-near-our-pipes
https://www.thameswater.co.uk/developers/larger-scale-developments/planning-your-development/working-near-our-pipes
mailto:developer.services@thameswater.co.uk


 
Application Number 22/02429/FUL 

Site Address Play Area 

Walterbush Road 

Chipping Norton 

Oxfordshire 

 

 

Date 2nd November 2022 

Officer James Nelson 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Chipping Norton Parish Council 

Grid Reference 430925 E       226061 N 

Committee Date 14th November 2022 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

 

Construction of eight custom build semi-detached dwellings, along with formation of a new access, 

landscaping and associated works. 

Page 44



 

Applicant Details: 

 

Mr Craig Strachan 

Green Axis Ltd 

14 High Street 

Chipping Norton 

Oxon 

OX7 5AD 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

OCC Highways The area of grass verge fronting the site or the area required for 

vehicular access to the west of the Walterbush Rd turning area is not 

public highway ( according to records ). 

Given the location the proposed parking area is adequate to serve the 

development, overlooked by the adjacent dwelling and considered 

safe and secure for use. 

The application provides adequate safe and secure cycle parking. 

 

The proposal, if permitted, will not have a significant detrimental 

impact ( in terms of highway safety and convenience ) on the adjacent 

highway network 

 

Recommendation: 

 

Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local Highways Authority, 

hereby notify the District Planning Authority that they do not object 

to the granting of planning permission, subject to the following 

conditions 

 

 G28 parking as plan 

 Prior to first occupation the provision and retention 

thereafter the pedestrian access to the dwellings as submitted 

 

 

WODC Drainage Engineers No objection subject to condition. 

 

 

WODC Env Health - Uplands I have no objection in principle. However due to the proximity and 

potential impact on neighbouring properties and adjacent play area, I 

would request the following:  

 

A Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Including demolition, the CEMP shall identify the steps and 

procedures that will be implemented to minimise the creation and 

impact of noise, vibration, dust, light spill/glare, hours of operation 

and waste disposal resulting from the site preparation, groundwork 

and construction phases of the development and manage Heavy/Large 

Page 45



Goods Vehicle access to the site. It shall include measures to be 

employed to prevent the egress of mud, water and other detritus 

onto the public and any non-adopted highways.  

 

Reason: To protect the amenity of the locality, especially for people 

living and/or working nearby, and adults and children using the 

adjacent sports ground and nursery facilities. 

 

 

WODC Env Consultation Sites Thank you for consulting our team, I have looked at the application in 

relation to contaminated land and potential risk to human health.  

 

Review of the historical maps we hold show a small quarry 

approximately 125m to the north west of the proposed development 

site. The quarry is no longer shown on the 1923 map.  

 

Given the proposed residential use of the site please consider adding 

the following condition as a precaution.  

 

1. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying 

out the approved development, it must be reported in writing 

immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk 

assessment must be undertaken and where remediation is necessary, 

a remediation scheme must be prepared to bring the site to a 

condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable 

risks to human health, buildings and other property, and which is 

subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.  

 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of 

the amenity. 

 

Relevant Policies: West Oxfordshire Local Planning Policy EH8 and 

Section 15 of the NPPF. 

 

It is also noted that the proposed development site is in an area 

where full radon protection measures are required.  

 Review of the historical maps we hold show a small quarry 

approximately 125m to the north west of the proposed development 

site. The quarry is no longer shown on the 1923 map.  

 

Given the proposed residential use of the site please consider adding 

the following condition as a precaution.  

 

1. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying 

out the approved development, it must be reported in writing 

immediately to the Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk 

assessment must be undertaken and where remediation is necessary, 

a remediation scheme must be prepared to bring the site to a 

condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable 

risks to human health, buildings and other property, and which is 

Page 46



subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.  

 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the environment in the interests of 

the amenity. 

 

Relevant Policies: West Oxfordshire Local Planning Policy EH8 and 

Section 15 of the NPPF. 

 

It is also noted that the proposed development site is in an area 

where full radon protection measures are required.  

 

 

District Ecologist  No objection subject to conditions. 

 

 

Thames Water  No comment. 

 

 

Environment Agency  No Comment Received. 

 

 

OCC Rights Of Way Field 

Officer 

 No objection. 

 

 

Parish Council Chipping Norton Town Council strongly supports this planning 

application for 8 dwellings in Walterbush Road. Members would like 

to mention that they are very supportive of affordable, zero-carbon 

houses being developed to serve the needs of Chipping Norton 

Residents. 

 

 

2 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

2.1 The application has been furnished with a design and access statement to accompany the application, 

the main points of which are summarised below. The full document is available to view on the 

Council's website.  

 

2.2 Tecbüro AT Ltd are appointed by Green Axis Ltd to develop architectural design proposals for 8 homes and 

associated works on a parcel of land off Walterbush Road located on the southern boundary of the town of 

Chipping Norton. Key principles of the design are that the homes should be zero carbon, affordable, and 

customisable allowing purchasers to select from a palette of layouts and materials. 

 

2.3 Location: The site measures approximately 0.19ha in area and fronts Walterbush Road which provides 

access to established housing on the southern edge of Chipping Norton. Abutting the north-eastern boundary 

of the site is a recent development of over 200 homes. To the south-east is a sports field and to the south-

west open farmland. 

 

2.4 Local Character: There is no definitive architectural style to the properties in the local vicinity with much of 

the housing stock being from the mid to late twentieth century built in the main of brick and tile with some 

Page 47



use of render. The recent development to the NE is formed of typical developer house type designs, the 

majority formed with buff and red brick under tiled roofs.  

 

2.5 The development of the design has been framed by several key requirements,  

 The homes should be sustainable and aim to meet the requirements of the WODC Net Zero 

Carbon Toolkit 

 The homes should be affordable (discount market sale) at 80% of the open market value 

 The homes should meet the NaCSBA definition for custom build thereby offering the purchaser 

meaningful scope to personalise their home.  

 

2.6 Developed Scheme: Informed by the West Oxfordshire Design Guide, the proposal that has emerged from 

the developments process is a linear development of 8 semi -detached homes fronting Walterbush Road. The 

building line formed by the new homes is set some 5.5m from the road and maintains the existing grass 

verge. The homes are orientated to be within 30 degrees of due south to meet the requirements of the 

WODC Net Zero Carbon Toolkit and so maximise the opportunity for PV energy generation etc. Each home 

has a private rear garden providing good levels of amenity space. A shared parking area is proposed that will 

include car charging and two spaces reserved for a community car club. A community space located on the 

SW boundary will act as a "buffet” between the new development and farmland. The definition of the space 

will be established through community involvement.  

 

2.7 Scale: The bulk of existing housing surrounding the site is of terraced or semi-detached form, the new 

development is therefore an appropriate addition to the street scene. Careful attention has been paid to the 

positioning and levels of the new homes so as to prevent overbearing towards the most recent development to 

the NE boundary. To this end the ground will be graded to allow the homes to sit below the current levels.  

 

2.8 Appearance: A contemporary aesthetic is proposed utilising materials that reflect the setting of the 

development and contribute towards net zero carbon and custom build aspirations. Early engagement with 

the appointed Passivhaus consultant in line with the Net Zero Carbon Toolkit has led to the adoption of a 

simple efficient form orientated to benefit from winter solar gain.  

 

2.9 Custom Build: Each home will be fully customisable by the purchaser, including floor plans, layouts, external 

materials, and internal finishes; all from a range of predetermined, pre -priced options that have already been 

modelled to ensure minimal impact on the energy performance of the home. This provides homes that 

respond to self and custom build legislation and supports NPPF objective s, and which will be marketed to the 

WODC self and custom build register first. 

 

2.10 Affordable Housing: All 8 units will be sold as Discount Market Sale at 80% of the open market value and 

held in perpetuity, and there is a mixture of 2 and 3 bed properties aligning with the Local Plan. 

 

3 THIRD PARTY REPRESENTATIONS  

 

3.1 No third party comments have been received in relation to this application.  

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS1NEW Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS3NEW Prudent use of natural resources 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H1NEW Amount and distribution of housing 

Page 48



H2NEW Delivery of new homes 

H3NEW Affordable Housing 

H4NEW Type and mix of new homes 

H5NEW Custom and self build housing 

T1NEW Sustainable transport 

T3NEW Public transport, walking and cycling 

T4NEW Parking provision 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH5 Sport, recreation and childrens play 

EH7 Flood risk 

CN2 Chipping Norton sub-area Strategy 

MP8 Natural environment 

MP11 Urban fringe development 

TM3 Chipping Norton Neighbourhood Plan 

TM6 Chipping Norton Neighbourhood Plan 

TM7 Chipping Norton Neighbourhood Plan 

TM8 Chipping Norton Neighbourhood Plan 

BD3 Affordable housing 

BD6 Provision of self build plots 

NPPF 2021 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

5.1 Introduction  

 

5.1.1 This application seeks consent for the construction of eight custom build semi-detached dwellings, 

along with formation of a new access, landscaping and associated works at Play Area, Walterbush 

Road, Chipping Norton. The application site lies on the southern edge of the town and is within the 

Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) and Chipping Norton Neighbourhood Plan 

area. There is no relevant planning history on the site.  

 

5.1.2 This application is brought before Members in accordance with the scheme of delegation as the 

Council has an interest in the land.  

 

5.2 Relevant Planning Considerations  

 

5.2.1 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires applications for 

planning permission be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 

considerations indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

provides that the Local Planning Authority (LPA) shall have regard to the provisions of the 

development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any other material considerations.  

The revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) reiterates the pre-eminence of the local 

plan as the starting point for decision-making (Paragraph 2 of the NPPF). The NPPF is a material 

consideration in any assessment and makes clear in Paragraph 12 that the presumption in favour of 

sustainable development does not change the statutory status of the development plan as the starting 

point for decision-making. Therefore, development coming forward must be determined in 

Page 49



accordance with the development plan, which in this case is comprised of the West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan 2031 (WOLP) and Chipping Norton Neighbourhood Plan 2031 (CNNP).  

 

5.2.2 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties, officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

 The Principle of Development; 

 Loss of Children's Play Area; 

 Siting, Scale, Design and Form; 

 Visual Amenity Impact; 

 Impact on the AONB; 

 Residential Amenity; 

 Highways and Public Right of Way (PRoW); 

  Ecology;  

 Drainage; and  

 Planning Balance 

 

5.3 Principle of Development  

 

5.3.1 WOLP policy OS2 defines Chipping Norton as a main service centre in the settlement hierarchy 

(table 4b). Policy OS2 states that:  

 

"A significant proportion of new homes, jobs and supporting services will be focused within and on the edge of 

the main service centres of Witney, Carterton and Chipping Norton" and "proposals for residential 

development will be considered in accordance with Policy H2 of this Local Plan." 

 

5.3.2 WOLP policy CN2 also describes how Chipping Norton will be the focus of new housing in that 

sub-area. Policy OS2 goes on to outline that all development should accord with the general 

principles set out. Those that are considered relevant to this application are that development 

should:  

 

 "Be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its context having regard to the potential cumulative 

impact of development in the locality;  

 Form a logical complement to the existing scale and pattern of development and/or the character of the 

area;  

 Be compatible with adjoining uses and not have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants;  

 As far as is reasonably possible protect or enhance the local landscape and the setting of the 

settlement/s;  

 Not involve the loss of an area of open space or any other feature that makes an important contribution 

to the character or appearance of the area; 

  Be provided with safe vehicular access and safe and convenient pedestrian access to supporting services 

and facilities;  

 Not be at risk of flooding or likely to increase the risk of flooding elsewhere; 

  Conserve and enhance the natural, historic and built environment; 

  In the AONB, give great weight to conserving landscape and scenic beauty and comply with national 

policy concerning major development;  

 Be supported by all necessary infrastructure including that which is needed to enable access to superfast 

broadband." 

 

Page 50



5.3.3 Following recent appeal decision (PINs ref: 3293656), the LPA accepts that it is at present unable  

to demonstrate a five-year supply of housing land. NPPF footnote 8 directs that where the LPA 

cannot demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites, paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF is 

engaged and there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development unless: 

 

I. the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or  

II. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, 

when assessed against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole. 

 

5.3.4 The 'tilted balance' as directed by paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF is therefore engaged. This does not 

undermine the pre-eminence of the local development plan in decision-making and assessment 

against relevant policies in the WOLP may therefore be weighted in the planning balance. However, 

the provisions of WOLP policy H2 are considered out of date and may only be afforded limited 

weight. 

 

5.3.5 WOLP policy H2 sets out the District's housing need over the plan period and dictates that: 

  

"New dwellings will be permitted at the main service centres… in the following circumstances:  

 

 On sites that have been allocated for housing development within a Local Plan or relevant 

neighbourhood plan;  

 On previously developed land within or adjoining the built up area provided the loss of any existing use 

would not conflict with other plan policies and the proposal complies with the general principles set out 

in Policy OS2 and any other relevant policies in this plan;  

 On undeveloped land within the built up area provided that the proposal is in accordance with the other 

policies in the plan and in particular the general principles in Policy OS2.  

 On undeveloped land adjoining the built up area where convincing evidence is presented to demonstrate 

that it is necessary to meet identified housing needs, it is in accordance with the distribution of housing 

set out in Policy H1 and is in accordance with other policies in the plan in particular the general 

principles in Policy OS2."  

 

5.3.6 The application site has not been allocated for housing development within the WOLP or CNNP. 

Further, Annex 2 of the NPPF outlines that "land in built-up areas such as residential gardens, parks, 

recreation grounds" are not considered to constitute 'previously developed land'. The application site 

comprises a children's play area and as such, officers consider that the land is not previously 

developed and should therefore be regarded as undeveloped for the purposes of WOLP policy H2.  

 

5.3.7 The undeveloped land is bounded on two sides by existing residential development, with open 

countryside to the south and west and a disused former football pitch to the south east. Officers 

therefore consider that for the purposes of H2, the land adjoins the built up area rather than being 

within it. H2 therefore outlines that new dwellings will be permitted where "convincing evidence is 

presented to demonstrate that it is necessary to meet identified housing needs, it is in accordance with the 

distribution of housing set out in Policy H1 and is in accordance with other policies in the plan in particular 

the general principles in Policy OS2". 

 

5.3.8 With regard to the primary test of H2, that the proposal is necessary to meet identified housing 

needs, the scheme would provide eight custom build housing units. Following appeal decision (PINs 

ref: 3274197), the LPA accepts that is unable to demonstrate that it has met its statutory duty with 

regard to provision of custom and self-build plots. The Self-build and Custom Housebuilding (SBCH) 

Page 51



Act 2015 introduced a duty on local authorities to keep a register of individuals, and associations of 

individuals, who wished to acquire serviced plots of land to bring forward for SBCH projects. 

Councils are required to have regard to those registers when carrying out planning functions. The 

Housing and Planning (HP) Act 2016 provided a duty that Councils must give 'suitable' planning 

permissions to meet the demand for SBCH. Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) states registers are 

likely to be material considerations in decisions involving proposals for SBCH. The legislation also 

does not define 'suitable' planning permissions but NPPF defines SBCH as: 

  

"Housing built by an individual, a group of individuals, or persons working with or for them, to be occupied by 

that individual. Such housing can be either market or affordable housing. A legal definition, for the purpose 

of applying the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015 (as amended), is contained in section 1(A1) 

and (A2) of that Act."  

 

5.3.9 The application will be subject to a unilateral undertaking which seeks inter alia to ensure that the 

first occupiers of the proposed dwellings will have a meaningful input into the design through 

customisation options such as internal layout and external material choices. Officers are therefore 

satisfied that the proposal would provide eight units of custom build housing.  

 

5.3.10 The CNNP, which forms part of the statutory development plan, also provides explicit support 

for increased supply of SBCH plots within the neighbourhood plan area, further demonstrating 

identified local need. Policy BD6 provides explicit support for windfall SBCH sites and states that:  

 

"In addition to the proportional allocation of larger developments, the provision of new sites specifically for 

self-build is strongly supported." 

 

5.3.11 Given the established shortfall in provision of SBCH plots and the supportive policy context 

provided by the CNNP, officers consider that it has been demonstrated that the provision of eight 

custom build units in this location is necessary to meet identified housing needs for the purposes of 

H2.  

 

 

5.3.12 With regard to the second test of H2, that the location of the proposed dwelling would be in 

accordance with the distribution of housing set out in policy H1, given the development is located 

adjacent to a main service centre and the Chipping Norton Sub-Area has an identified housing need 

of 2,047 homes over the plan period, the provision of eight additional dwellings is considered to 

accord with policy H1.  

 

5.3.13 Finally, H2 outlines that proposals should accord with the development plan as a whole, with 

particular regard to the general principles of OS2. WOLP policy H5 also relates to SBCH and states 

that: 

 

"Proposals for custom and self-build housing will be approved in suitable, sustainable locations subject to 

compliance with other relevant policies of this plan including Policies OS2, H2 and E3."  

 

5.3.14 WOLP Policy E3 is not relevant in this case and therefore, the scheme should demonstrate 

compliance with OS2 and H2 in order to accord with policy H5. The application is therefore 

considered acceptable in principle subject to the application demonstrating compliance with the 

development plan when read as a whole. This will be fully considered in the following sections of the 

report.   

 

Page 52



5.4 Loss of Children's Play Area  

 

5.4.1 The proposed development would result in the loss of a children's play area. WOLP policy EH5 

outlines that: 

 

"New development should not result in the loss of open space, sports and recreational buildings and land 

unless up to date assessment shows the asset is surplus to requirements or the need for and benefits of the 

alternative land use clearly outweigh the loss and equivalent replacement provision is made."  

 

5.4.2 In this regard, the proposal would result in significant benefits such as the provision of eight 

dwellings to contribute towards the District's wider housing supply shortfall as well as the provision 

of SBCH. Each unit would also meet the NPPF's definition of affordable housing, which would 

positively contribute to mix of housing in the locality. Further, the provision of a replacement 

community facility would be provided through the inclusion of an amenity area to be transferred to a 

local community group for public use as secured via legal agreement. As such, the application is 

considered to accord with WOLP policy EH5.  

 

5.5 Siting, Scale, Design and Form 

 

5.5.1 The proposed would comprise four pairs of semi-detached dwellings set forward in roughly 

rectangular plots of 19.5 metres (m) in depth and 6m-6.6m in width. The buildings would be sited in a 

linear manner fronting Walterbush Road, with a slight offset in order to achieve maximum solar gain. 

The siting of the dwellings would be focussed in the eastern section of the site, with car parking 

spaces and a community space at the western end of the site. The proposed siting of the buildings 

and associated development is similar to that of adjoin dwellings to the north and east and is 

therefore considered to form a logical compliment to the existing built form in this location.  

 

5.5.2 The dwellings would be two-storey with ridge heights of approximately 8.5m and eaves heights of 

5m. Four dwellings would be set over an 80m2 footprint with the remaining four set over 90m2. The 

proposed dwellings would therefore be modest in terms of scale and comparable to nearby 

residential properties.  

 

5.5.3 In terms of design and form, both house types would take an unremarkable dual pitched form with 

a simple and contemporary design set over two bays. The character of the buildings would largely be 

dependent upon the use of materials, with prospective owners given a choice of light coloured 

renders, buff or blue brick slip, vertical timber cladding, aluminium-clad timber joinery and grey metal 

standing seam roofs. The visual impact of the proposed dwelling and associated works will be fully 

considered in the following section of this report.  

 

5.6 Visual Amenity Impact 

 

5.6.1 WOLP policy OS4 requires development proposals to demonstrate high quality design and states 

that: 

 

"New development should respect the historic, architectural and landscape character of the locality, 

contribute to local distinctiveness and, where possible, enhance the character and quality of the surroundings"  

 

5.6.2 Supporting text at paragraphs 4.36 and 4.37 explain how the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

(WODG) (an adopted Supplementary Planning Document) 'describes the qualities and characteristics 

that make West Oxfordshire special, and ways in which good design can protect and enrich the 

Page 53



character of the District' (4.36). WOLP policy OS4 expects "all development to have regard to the 

guide" (4.37). 

 

5.6.3 With regard to new development and context, Section 11 of the WODG states: 

 

"Where the principle of development is deemed acceptable in planning terms, fundamental to the 

success of any subsequent proposal will be a comprehensive analysis and understanding of the site and 

context… particular care should be taken to ensure that local character is respected or strengthened". 

 

Further: 

 

"Where no positive or meaningful precedents exist in terms of local settlement character or design upon 

which to draw, it is important that new development is nonetheless made as distinctive as possible". 

 

5.6.4 In order to assess the potential impact of the proposal upon the visual amenity of the area, it is 

first necessary to identify the character of the locality at present. In terms of the site itself, the area 

appears as an under-utilised grassed parcel of land, which rises from Walterbush Road towards the 

rear of the site. It is not considered to form a positive contribution to the existing character of the 

area, which is defined by nondescript mid-twentieth century estate development to the north and 

west and more recent terraced dwellings to the east. The topography of the area ensures that 

intermittent views to the open countryside to the north and west are also possible, which officers 

consider contributes positively to its existing character. The locality therefore demonstrates a 

distinctly residential character, which is enhanced through its visual relationship to the surrounding 

landscape.  

 

5.6.5 The proposed siting of the dwellings and rising topography toward the south ensure that the 

proposed dwellings would not obscure existing views out into the adjacent countryside. As a result, 

the existing character of the area would be retained in this regard. In terms of the relationship 

between the proposed dwellings and existing built form, the simple forms, siting and comparable 

height and massing of the buildings would ensure that the buildings appear in keeping with their 

existing residential context.  

 

5.6.6 Officers consider that given the existing nondescript character of adjacent dwellings, the use of 

modern materials and methods of construction, seeking to minimise carbon emissions, would appear 

appropriate in this context. The WODG advises against the "slavish repetition of surrounding housing 

layouts or house types" and is supportive toward enrichment of existing character. Further, the 

orientation of the dwellings has been informed by the maximisation of solar gain, which is specifically 

supported in Section 12 of the WODG and WOLP policy OS3. Officers therefore consider that the 

design approach taken is acceptable in this context and would positively contribute to local 

distinctiveness in this area. The application is therefore considered to accord with WOLP policies 

OS2, OS3, OS4 with regard to visual amenity impact.  

 

5.7 Impact on the AONB 

 

5.7.1 The site is located within the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). Section 85 

of the Countryside and Rights of Way (CROW) Act 2000 states that relevant authorities have a 

statutory duty to conserve and enhance the natural beauty of the AONB.  

 

WOLP policy EH1 states: 

 

Page 54



"In determining development proposals within the Cotswolds Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) 

and proposals which would affect its setting, great weight will be given to conserving and enhancing the areas 

natural beauty, landscape and countryside, including its wildlife and heritage. This will include consideration of 

any harm to the contribution that the settlement makes to the scenic beauty of the AONB". 

 

Paragraph 176 of the NPPF states: 

 

"great weight should be given to conserving and enhancing landscape and scenic beauty in National Parks, 

the Broads and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty which have the highest status of protection in relation to 

these issues". 

 

This duty is also reflected in CNNP policy MP8.  

 

5.7.2 With regard to the impact of the proposed scheme upon the AONB, the proposed dwellings 

would not be prominent in wider views within the landscape, including long views into the town. The 

topography of the land rises to the south meaning that views from this direction are restricted. 

Further, when seen from the south west and north, the proposed dwellings would be viewed in the 

context of surrounding residential development and result in no material impact upon landscape and 

scenic beauty in this part of the AONB. The application is therefore considered to accord with 

WOLP policy EH1, CNNP policy MP8 as well as national legislation and guidance.      

 

5.8 Residential Amenity 

 

5.8.1 WOLP policy OS2 states that new development should be compatible with adjoining uses and not 

have a harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants. The importance of minimising adverse 

impacts upon the amenity of future and neighbouring occupiers is reiterated in policy OS4, the 

WODG and the NPPF (para. 185). 

 

5.8.2 In terms of overlooking, the proposed dwellings would front Walterbush Road with open land to 

the rear. Due to their siting, orientation and separation distances to neighbouring properties, the 

proposed dwellings would not result in increased overlooking to third parties. Further, given the 

linear siting of the units, there would not be an unacceptable level of overlooking between each of 

the proposed units. The application is therefore acceptable in this regard.  

 

5.8.3 With regard to overbearing impact, the proposed units would be sited some 18m-24m from 

neighbouring dwellings on the north side of Walterbush Road (numbers 100, 102 and 113). Further, 

numbers 102 and 113 are set at right angles to the proposed dwellings meaning that only blank 

elevations could be impacted. In terms of the impact upon number 100, officers consider that the 

front to front distance of 19m is typical of residential developments and is therefore acceptable. For 

the same reasons, the proposed dwellings would not unacceptably block light from reaching numbers 

100, 102 and 113.  

 

5.8.4 Plot one of the proposed development would abut 87 Evans Way. Due to the shallowness of the 

plot, plot one would be sited approximately 9.5m forward of the principle elevation of number 87 

and 5m to the west. The principle elevation of number 87 contains one window at ground floor level 

serving a non-habitable room (kitchen) and two at first floor level, which serve a single bedroom. As 

such, any impact at ground floor level would not affect habitable rooms and at first floor level, the 

existing bedroom is served by two windows on either side of the elevation. In addition, the elevation 

in question faces northwest meaning that it is likely to receive very little direct sunlight in any case. 

Therefore, any loss of light and overbearing impact is likely to be minimal and does not warrant 

Page 55



refusal of the application. The proposal is therefore considered to accord with  WOLP policies OS2, 

OS4 and the WODG with regard to neighbourly amenity impact.  

 

5.9 Highways and Public Right of Way (PRoW) 

 

5.9.1 WOLP policy OS2 states that new development should be provided with safe vehicular access and 

safe and convenient pedestrian access to supporting services and facilities.  

 

5.9.2 The proposed works would impact a PRoW that runs through the site during the construction 

period. It is understood that a temporary route will be provided for pedestrians and the PRoW will 

be reinstated upon completion.  

  

5.9.3 With regard to vehicular and pedestrian access, a footpath is proposed along the frontage of the 

site and given its location within a main service centre, pedestrian access to a range of services will 

be easily available to future occupiers. Cycle storage facilities will also be provided. In terms of 

vehicles, a total of 12 parking spaces will be provided for residents and visitors, with a further two 

made available for a community car club/electric vehicle charging. The proposed access will be taken 

from Walterbush Road. Consultation has been carried out with the Local Highways Authority (LHA) 

and OCC PRoW officer who have raised no objection to the scheme subject to the imposition of 

planning conditions. The application is therefore accords with WOLP polices OS2, T1, T3 and T4 and 

is acceptable in this regard.  

 

5.10 Ecology  

  

5.10.1 WOLP policy EH3 states that the biodiversity of West Oxfordshire shall be protected and 

enhanced to achieve an overall net gain in biodiversity. The application has been furnished with a 

Preliminary Ecological Appraisal which confirms that the site is of low intrinsic value regarding 

ecology. The application has been scrutinised by the LPA's ecologist who has recommended that 

planning conditions are imposed to ensure that precautionary working measures are adopted and 

ecological enhancement features provided in order to deliver net gains in biodiversity, in accordance 

with policy EH3 and guidance contained in the NPPF (paras. 174, 179 and 180). The application is 

therefore acceptable in ecology terms.   

 

5.11 Drainage 

 

5.11.1 WOLP policies OS2 and EH7 require development not be at risk of flooding or likely to increase 

the risk of flooding elsewhere. The application site lies within Flood Risk Zone 1 and is therefore at 

low risk of flooding however, to ensure that surface water is managed effectively and to reduce risk 

to third parties, the LPA's drainage engineers have requested that a surface water drainage scheme is 

submitted as a condition of a planning consent. The application is therefore acceptable in this regard.  

  

5.12 Planning Balance 

 

5.12.1 This assessment has found that the proposed development accords with the local development 

plan however, as the LPA's housing locational policy is considered out of date due to the failure to 

demonstrate a deliverable five year housing land supply, the tilted balance is engaged as directed by 

NPPF paragraph 11(d). This assessment has found that the proposal would result in no harm to areas 

or assets of particular importance (in this case the AONB) and therefore, para 11(d)(ii) is engaged 

meaning that permission should be granted unless: 

 

Page 56



"any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed 

against the policies in this Framework taken as a whole". 

 

5.12.2 Notwithstanding this assessment has found the proposal to accord with the local development 

plan, the NPPF is an important material consideration for the decision maker and therefore, the 

balancing exercise as dictated above must be carried out given the LPA's housing land supply position. 

For the purpose of this exercise, an ascending scale of weight is adopted from limited, to moderate, 

significant and finally, substantial.  

 

5.12.3 In terms of the benefits, the scheme would provide eight units of affordable housing, which would 

improve the supply of dwellings in the District as well as diversify the housing mix. The provision of 

eight units would make a small contribution to overall supply and provide a boost to the local 

economy through its construction and local spend of residents. New residents may also improve 

social cohesion through the expansion of the community. Such economic and social benefits would 

weigh in favour of the proposal. Given the minor scale of the scheme, the provision of eight units 

alone should be awarded limited weight. However, the scheme would also provide 100% affordable 

housing, which is far above the requirements of WOLP policy H3, which requires that schemes of 

this size in the AONB make a financial contribution towards the provision of affordable housing off-

site. Therefore, the provision of eight affordable units should be awarded significant weight in the 

planning balance. 

 

5.12.4 The scheme would also contribute to the provision of SBCH in the District. Officers accept the 

LPA is unable to demonstrate that it is meeting its statutory duty with regard to plot provision and 

therefore, although the contribution to SBCH supply would be relatively small, the shortfall, 

statutory duty, and the economic and social benefits associated with increased SBCH should attract 

substantial weight in the planning balance.  

 

5.12.5 Further public benefits would include the provision of a community open space and developer 

contributions towards its provision and the setting up of a community car club and electric vehicle 

charging points. Officers consider that these benefits should attract moderate weight.  

 

5.12.6 Weighing against the proposal would be the loss of a children's play area however, given the 

public benefits arising from the scheme, including provision of community facilities, the loss of this 

space has been found to accord with WOLP policy EH5.  

 

5.12.7 The public benefits arising from the scheme would therefore outweigh the harms and therefore 

the proposal amounts to sustainable development.   

 

5.13 Recommendation  

 

5.13.1 In light of the above assessment, the application is considered to accord with West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan 2031 policies OS1, OS2, OS3, OS4, H1, H2, H3, H4, H5, T1, T3, T4, EH1, EH3, EH5, EH7 

and CN2, Chipping Norton Neighbourhood Plan 2031 polices MP8, MP11, TM3, TM6, TM7, TM8, 

BD3 and BD6, the NPPF 2021 and the West Oxfordshire Design Guide. The application is 

recommended to Members for conditional approval.   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 57



 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

3. The development shall be constructed in accordance with the options set out in the materials 

specification document ref: 21013-PL-D02, as submitted with the application. 

 

REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and for the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or 

without modification), no development permitted under Schedule 2, Part 1, Class A shall be carried 

out other than that expressly authorised by this permission. 

 

REASON: Control is needed in order to prevent overdevelopment of the plots. 

 

5. The car parking areas (including where appropriate the marking out of parking spaces) shown on 

the approved plans shall be constructed before occupation of the development and thereafter 

retained and used for no other purpose. 

 

REASON: To ensure that adequate car parking facilities are provided in the interests of road safety. 

 

6. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the pedestrian accesses and 

footpaths serving the dwellings as detailed on plan ref: 21013-PL-101 B shall be installed in full and 

retained thereafter.  

 

REASON: In order to ensure safe and adequate pedestrian access to serve the development. 

 

7. Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, all boundary treatments shall be 

installed in full according to the locations and specifications as detailed on plan ref: 21013-PL-101 B 

and retained thereafter.  

 

REASON: In the interests of neighbourly and visual amenity.  

 

8. No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until the means to ensure a maximum water 

consumption of 110 litres use per person per day, in accordance with policy OS3, has been 

complied with for that dwelling and retained in perpetuity thereafter. 

 

REASON: To improve the sustainability of the dwellings in accordance with policy OS3 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

Page 58



 

9. The development shall be completed in accordance with the measures outlined within the West 

Oxfordshire District Council's Precautionary Method of Working document. All the 

recommendations shall be implemented in full, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA.  

 

REASON: To ensure nesting birds, reptiles, amphibians, hedgehogs and badgers are protected in 

accordance with The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the 

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), Circular 06/2005, the National Planning Policy 

Framework (in particular Chapter 15), Policy EH3 of West Oxfordshire Local Plan and in order for 

the Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

10. Within 3 months of the commencement of development, a specification (including methodology and 

programme of implementation) for the enhancement of biodiversity through the provision of 

integrated swift bricks, house martin cups, bat boxes/tubes and hedgehog friendly fencing shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include a 

drawing/s showing the types of features, their locations within the site, and a timetable for their 

provision. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved specification and 

programme of implementation and be retained thereafter. 

 

REASON: To provide additional roosting for bats and nesting birds as a biodiversity enhancement 

in accordance with paragraphs 174, 179 and 180 of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy 

EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and Section 40 of the Natural Environment and 

Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

11. Prior first occupation of the development hereby approved, written and illustrative details of the 

number, type and location of Electric vehicle charging points (EVCP) to be installed to service the 

development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 

EVCP shall then be installed in accordance with the approved details prior to first occupation of the 

development. The EVCP shall be maintained and kept in good working order thereafter as specified 

by the manufacturer.  

 

REASON: To ensure a satisfactory standard of development which meets the needs of current and 

future generations in accordance with West Oxfordshire Local Plan Policy OS3. 

 

12. That, prior to the commencement of development, a full surface water drainage scheme shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include 

details of the size, position and construction of the drainage scheme and results of soakage tests 

carried out at the site, to demonstrate the infiltration rate. Three test results should be submitted 

for each soakage pit as per BRE 365, with the lowest infiltration rate (expressed in m/s) used for 

design. The details shall include a management plan setting out the maintenance of the drainage 

asset. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to the 

first occupation of the development hereby approved and shall be maintained in accordance with 

the management plan thereafter. Development shall not take place until an exceedance flow routing 

plan for flows above the 1 in 100 year + 40% CC event has been submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure the proper provision for surface water drainage and/ or to ensure flooding is 

not exacerbated in the locality (The West Oxfordshire Strategic Flood Risk Assessment, National 

Planning Policy Framework and Planning Practice Guidance). If the surface water design is not 

Page 59



agreed before works commence, it could result in abortive works being carried out on site or 

alterations to the approved site layout being required to ensure flooding does not occur. 

 

13. That prior to the commencement of development, a Construction Environmental Management Plan 

(CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP 

shall identify the steps and procedures that will be implemented to minimise the creation and 

impact of noise, vibration, dust, light spill/glare, hours of operation and waste disposal resulting 

from the site preparation, groundwork and construction phases of the development and manage 

Heavy/Large Goods Vehicle access to the site. It shall include measures to be employed to prevent 

the egress of mud, water and other detritus onto the public and any non-adopted highways. The 

agreed measures shall be implemented for the entire period of construction.  

 

REASON: To protect the amenity of the locality, especially for people living and/or working nearby, 

and adults and children using the adjacent nursery facilities. 

 

 

INFORMATIVES :- 

 

1. The Surface Water Drainage scheme should, where possible, incorporate Sustainable Drainage 

Techniques in order to ensure compliance with; 

 

 Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (Part 1 - Clause 27 (1))  

 Code for sustainable homes - A step-change in  sustainable home building practice 

 Oxfordshire County Council's Local standards and guidance for surface water drainage on major 

development in Oxfordshire (V1.2 December 2021)  

 The local flood risk management strategy published by Oxfordshire County Council 2015 - 2020  

as per the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (Part 1 - Clause 9 (1)) 

 CIRIA C753 SuDS Manual 2015 

 The National Flood and Coastal Erosion Risk Management Strategy for England, produced by 

the Environment Agency in July 2020, pursuant to paragraph 9 of Section 7 of the Flood and 

Water Management Act 2010. 

 Non-statutory technical standards for sustainable drainage systems (March 2015) 

 

2. Please note if works are required to be carried out within the public highway, the applicant shall 

not commence such work before formal approval has been granted by Oxfordshire County 

Council by way of legal agreement between the applicant and Oxfordshire County Council 

 

 

Contact Officer: James Nelson 

Telephone Number: 01993 861712 

Date: 2nd November 2022 

 

Page 60



 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Name and date of 

Committee 

Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee: 

Monday 14th November 2022 

Report Number Agenda Item No. 5 

Subject Update as to progress of 2 applications on allocated sites in Woodstock ref 

21/00217/OUT and 21/00189/FUL 

Wards affected Woodstock  

Accountable 

Officer/Author 

Phil Shaw (Business Management) on behalf of the case officer  

Tel: 01993 861687  

Email: phil.shaw@publicagroup.uk  

Summary/Purpose To update members as to progress towards determination of the above 

applications and to enable member input following the site visits such as to 

reduce the likelihood of the need for further deferrals when the items are 

considered.  

Annex Appendices – local plan policies 

Recommendation That the Sub-Committee notes the update and provides such initial views as 

to what may need to be addressed in the committee reports as they see fit. 

Corporate priorities  1.1. N/A 

Key Decision 1.2. N/A 

Exempt 1.3. No 

  

Page 61

Agenda Item 5

mailto:phil.shaw@publicagroup.uk


1. BACKGROUND  

1.1. The two applications under consideration are: 

21/00217/OUT Land North Of Banbury Road Outline planning application with all matters 

reserved except for means of access for up to 235 dwellings with community space and car 

barns together with associated works (Amended).) and:  

21/00189/FUL Land East Of Hill Rise full planning permission for 48 dwellings, 57 sqm of 

community space (Class E), a parking barn, means of access from the A44, associated 

infrastructure, open space, engineering and ancillary works; outline planning permission for 

up to 132 dwellings, up to 57 sqm of community space (Class E), a parking barn, with 

associated infrastructure, open space, engineering and ancillary works (amended))  

These sites are allocated under policy references EW4 and EW5 in the adopted local plan and 

Members are advised to review them as they contain a series of specific requirements that 

need to be met for the developments to accord with planning policy (see appendix a). 

1.2. The applications as originally tabled engendered considerable public comment and your 

officers had concerns that in both their design and the number of dwellings proposed there 

were some major deficiencies that meant that the schemes did not accord with the relevant 

policies. The applicant’s agent understandably held a contrary position and as such, 

notwithstanding considerable engagement, little progress was made towards resolving the key 

issues. The applicants have recently tabled amendments that offer at least the opportunity to 

make progress. These have been re-advertised and at the time of agenda preparation the 

views of key consultees remain outstanding. As such, at the point of the agenda deadline, 

Officers have a rolling draft of the reports but there are key sections where a proper 

assessment has not been possible because key consultee advice is outstanding.  

1.3. The agent has suggested that these could be picked up verbally at the meeting but given the 

scale of opposition to the original scheme and the extent of representation that is being 

received in respect of the amended proposals, your officers are concerned that bringing the 

scheme forward without a full and comprehensive report would be counterproductive as it 

could be perceived as unfairly prejudicing those who continue to make representations. 

Additionally it could open up any decision made to a far greater chance of judicial review. As 

such, the decision has been taken that it is not possible with the information currently with 

officers to make a full report, that updating the key outstanding matters verbally would not 

serve the interests of either objectors or potentially the applicants and that as such the 

applications should be properly considered at a future meeting when all the information is 

received.  

1.4. Rather than omit the schemes altogether from this agenda it would be useful to officers that, 

following their site visit, if members have matters they would like to see considered in the full 

report these are identified so that when the applications come forward for consideration at 

the earliest possible committee, they can be determined as opposed to needing to be deferred 

again to await that information. In that the reports are being prepared as a rolling draft, at the 

point the outstanding information is received it should not take long to provide the 

comprehensive reports and so hopefully, with both officers and the applicants agent pushing 

Page 62



the consultees for a response, the determination date will not slip beyond December - subject 

to the consultee responses. 

 

2. MAIN POINTS 

2.1. Officers considered that a site visit to consider the proposed development would be of benefit 

to members prior to the formal consideration and determination of the applications. By 

allowing some discussion (but not determination), it will assist in identifying any issues of 

particular relevance that can be addressed in the final reports, with a view to ensuring that 

further deferral is not required. 

 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

3.1. There are no financial implications resulting from this report.   

 

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

4.1. Members could decide to delegate determination of the application to officers but given 

their scale and the extent of public interest, this is not recommended. 

 

5. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

5.1. The documents submitted in relation to planning applications 21/00217/OUT and 

21/00189/OUT which are available to view on the Council’s website. 

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 

Page 65



Appendix A 

 

Page 66



Appendix A 

 

Page 67



Appendix A 

 

 

Page 68



DELGAT 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS  

 

Application Types Key 

 

Suffix 

 

 Suffix  

ADV Advertisement Consent LBC Listed Building Consent 

CC3REG County Council Regulation 3 LBD Listed Building Consent - Demolition 

CC4REG County Council Regulation 4 OUT Outline Application 

CM County Matters RES Reserved Matters Application 

FUL Full Application S73 Removal or Variation of Condition/s 

HHD Householder Application POB Discharge of Planning Obligation/s 

CLP 

CLASSM 

 

HAZ 

PN42 

 

PNT 

NMA 

WDN 

Certificate of Lawfulness Proposed 

Change of Use – Agriculture to 

Commercial 

Hazardous Substances Application 

Householder Application under Permitted 

Development legislation. 

Telecoms Prior Approval 

Non Material Amendment 

Withdrawn 

 

CLE 

CND 

PDET28 

PN56 

POROW 

TCA 

TPO 

 

FDO 

Certificate of Lawfulness Existing 

Discharge of Conditions 

Agricultural Prior Approval 

Change of Use Agriculture to Dwelling 

Creation or Diversion of Right of Way 

Works to Trees in a Conservation Area 

Works to Trees subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order 

Finally Disposed Of 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

 

Description 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

Description 

APP 

REF 

P1REQ 

P3APP 

P4APP 

Approve 

Refuse  

Prior Approval Required 

Prior Approval Approved 

Prior Approval Approved 

RNO 

ROB 

P2NRQ 

P3REF 

P4REF 

Raise no objection  

Raise Objection  

Prior Approval Not Required 

Prior Approval Refused 

Prior Approval Refused 

 

 

 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS 

Week Ending 18th October 2022 

 

  

Application Number.  

 

Ward. 

 

 Decision. 

 

 

1.  21/02720/HHD Charlbury and Finstock WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Restoration, including raising of roof height, of outbuilding to form workshop. 

The Willows Church Lane Charlbury 

Dr Karim Lahham 

 

 

Page 69

Agenda Item 6



DELGAT 
 

2.  21/02746/LBC Charlbury and Finstock WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations, including raising of roof height, to restore outbuilding to 

form workshop. 

The Willows Church Lane Charlbury 

Dr Karim Lahham 

 

 

3.  21/02888/LBC Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement roof covering using the original slates where possible (amended description). 

The Leazings Witney Lane Leafield 

Mr Steven Taylor 

 

 

4.  21/03881/S73 Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of conditions 2 and 9 of planning permission 21/00836/FUL to allow the use of 

existing properties combined sewer for storm water drainage. 

The Leazings Witney Lane Leafield 

Mr Steven Taylor 

 

 

5.  21/04104/PDET28 Chadlington and Churchill P3APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of agricultural storage/general purpose barns. 

Mount Farm Junction Road Churchill 

W Hollest 

 

 

6.  22/00469/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Discharge of condition 8 (full surface water drainage scheme) of planning permission 

19/03399/FUL 

Beaconsfield Farm Great Tew Chipping Norton 

Mr N Clarry 

 

 

Page 70



DELGAT 
 

7.  22/00658/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 6 (Construction Traffic Management Plan), 7 (details of the access 

between the land and highway) and 9 (surface water drainage scheme) of planning permission 

20/01069/FUL (Amended information submitted. 

Wigwam Storage  Hook Norton Road Chipping Norton 

Mr Nick Grant 

 

 

8.  22/00893/LBC Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement of three windows to the east gable end. 

105 Manor Road Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr D Lloyd 

 

 

9.  22/00879/CND Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 4 (details of vehicular accesses, driveways, car and cycle parking 

spaces, turning areas and parking courts) and condition 9 (gas protection measures) of 

planning permission 20/00853/FUL 

49 Main Road Long Hanborough Witney 

 

 

 

10.  22/00856/S73 Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of conditions 2 (to allow changes to garage design of Plot 3), 5 (drainage), 6 (electric 

vehicle charging), 8 (ecology enhancements), 9 (external lighting) and 10 (landscaping) of 

planning permission 21/00398/FUL. 

The Sycamores Rock Hill Chipping Norton 

Mr C Chesterton 

 

 

11.  22/01366/S73 Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of planing permission 20/02343/FUL to allow design changes to 

garaging. 

Yew Dell Hixet Wood Charlbury 

Mr R French 

 

 

Page 71



DELGAT 
 

12.  22/01790/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Remove existing rear boundary walling and re-use stone to create new, 1.2m stone party wall 

(to replace existing close boarded fence) (amended). 

1 Rose Cottages Fawler Chipping Norton 

Sarah Ball 

 

 

13.  22/01791/LBC Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Remove existing rear boundary walling and re-use stone to create new, 1.2m stone party wall 

(to replace existing close boarded fence). Installation of basement window in South (rear) 

elevation (amended). 

1 Rose Cottages Fawler Chipping Norton 

Ms Sarah Ball 

 

 

14.  22/01858/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Removal of existing extensions and outbuildings. Erection of rear extension with glazed link to 

dwelling, construction of a detached garage and associated landscaping works. 

34 Millwood End Long Hanborough Witney 

Alison And Kevin Corridan And Pritchett 

 

 

15.  22/01933/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Discharge condition 8 (details of bat roosting and bird nesting) of planning permission 

21/00508/FUL 

Heythrop Park Hotel  Heythrop Park Heythrop 

Warner Leisure Hotels 

 

 

16.  22/01935/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Discharge Condition 10 (Surface Water Drainage Scheme) of planning permission 

21/03464/FUL 

Heythrop Park Hotel  Heythrop Park Heythrop 

Warner Leisure Hotels 

 

 

17.  22/01960/CND Chipping Norton APP 

  

Discharge of condition 7 (full surface water drainage scheme) of planning permission 

22/00583/FUL 

31 Worcester Road Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Ben Ricketts 

 

 

Page 72



DELGAT 
 

18.  22/01991/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Relaying of the roof covering with additional insulation to all pitched roof elements and 

dormer windows. 

Red Brick House Bruern Chipping Norton 

Mrs Judy Astor 

 

 

19.  22/01992/LBC Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Relaying of the roof covering with additional insulation to all pitched roof elements and 

dormer windows. 

Red Brick House Bruern Chipping Norton 

Mrs Judy Astor 

 

 

20.  22/02028/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations to include removal of existing boiler room, erection of a detached single storey 

outbuilding and bin storage unit, part conversion of existing garage to ancillary guest 

accommodation, insertion of roof lights to main dwelling along with replacement of roof tiles 

and existing central chimney 

Judges Cottage Church Street Kingham 

Mrs Michela Hancock 

 

 

21.  22/02029/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal alterations to include changes to each floor layout, removal and relocation of first to 

second floor staircase, lowering of floor level in Drawing Room and opening of doorway from 

mezzanine to first floor. External alterations to include removal of existing boiler room, 

erection of a detached single storey outbuilding and bin storage unit, part conversion of 

existing garage to ancillary guest accommodation, insertion of roof lights and changes to 

fenestration  to main dwelling along with replacement of roof tiles  and existing central 

chimney 

Judges Cottage Church Street Kingham 

Mrs Michela Hancock 

 

 

22.  22/02052/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a two storey rear extension and to reinstate side window. 

64 The Leys Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr David Townley 

 

 

Page 73



DELGAT 
 

23.  22/02058/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Conversion of existing structure to annexe ancillary to main dwelling 

2 Manor Farm Barns Chapel Lane Enstone 

Mrs Catlin 

 

 

24.  22/02068/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Installation of 3/4 Span Greenhouse. 

Old Foxcote Farmhouse Foscot Chipping Norton 

Mrs Sue Helm 

 

 

25.  22/02069/LBC Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Installation of 3/4 Span Greenhouse. 

Old Foxcote Farmhouse Foscot Chipping Norton 

Mrs Sue Helm 

 

 

26.  22/02070/FUL Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Demolish and remove garage court buildings, replace with two semi-detached dwellings 

together with provision of amenity areas, off street parking and bio-diversity works. 

Land And Garages Between 22 And 23 Pinsley Road Long Hanborough 

Mr Michael Stevens 

 

 

27.  22/02079/S73 Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 21/02652/HHD to allow the addition of an 

ensuite bathroom adjoined to the approved bedroom. 

The Rise Hixet Wood Charlbury 

Mr Matthew Rickard 

 

 

28.  22/02094/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Refurbishment works to dwelling house construction of a new swimming pool and pool 

house, refurbishment and replacement of outbuildings and associated landscape works. 

Combe House Park Road Combe 

Chloe & Carl Vine 

 

 

Page 74



DELGAT 
 

29.  22/02148/FUL Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Development of seven houses and a two storey block of four flats with associated works to 

include widening of Greenwich Lane 

Land West Of Greenwich Lane Leafield 

Mr John Smith 

 

 

30.  22/02140/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Refurbish existing casement and sash windows and proposed rear side oak framed porch 

(amended description) 

Jasmine House The Green Kingham 

Mr Ben Shearer 

 

 

31.  22/02141/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Refurbish existing casement and sash windows and proposed rear side oak framed porch 

(amended description) 

Jasmine House The Green Kingham 

Mr Ben Shearer 

 

 

32.  22/02168/HHD Woodstock and Bladon REF 

  

Single and two storey flat roof extensions to front and single and two storey bay windows to 

rear. 

10 Glovers Close Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr And Mrs Ian Mutch 

 

 

33.  22/02200/FUL Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Closure of existing and creation of new vehicular and pedestrian access from Bruern Road. 

Lansdowne Bruern Road Milton Under Wychwood 

Mr And Mrs Jill And John Fox 

 

 

34.  22/02224/HHD Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Replacement of existing conservatory and construction of single storey rear extension to 

form ground floor disabled persons bedroom. 

50 Broadmarsh Lane Freeland Witney 

Mrs Claudine Smith 

 

 

Page 75



DELGAT 
 

35.  22/02246/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement Greenhouse 

Brasenose Cottage Church End Great Rollright 

Elizabeth Howell 

 

 

36.  22/02262/FUL Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of existing bungalow to create a 3 bedroom, one and a half storey cottage with a 

single storey rear extension together with associated works and parking. 

73 Grove Road Bladon Woodstock 

Miss And Mr Sue And Mark Wills And Okwesa 

 

 

37.  22/02263/LBC Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Underpinning of the gable end wall of the principal house. 

Drive Cottage Sarsden Chipping Norton 

Mr And Mrs Gallagher 

 

 

38.  22/02272/S73 Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Removal of conditions 4 and 5 of planning permission 15/03554/FUL to allow changes to car 

parking facilities and layout. 

Chapel Barn The Terrace Milton Under Wychwood 

Mrs Sharon Hooton 

 

 

39.  22/02273/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed one and a half and single storey rear extensions and internal and external 

alterations 

Freemans Cottage West End Kingham 

Mr And Mrs J And K Lofthouse 

 

 

40.  22/02274/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed one and a half and single storey rear extensions and internal and external 

alterations 

Freemans Cottage West End Kingham 

Mr And Mrs J And K Lofthouse 

 

 

Page 76



DELGAT 
 

41.  22/02293/S73 Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Variation of conditions 2 and 3 of planning permission 21/00358/FUL to allow alterations 

including reduction in plan area, squaring off the building plan and changes to external 

materials. 

Mo Tighe Chapel House Grounds Chipping Norton 

Mr C Baylis 

 

 

42.  22/02295/HHD Charlbury and Finstock REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Insertion of rooflights to front elevation, render finish to existing and dormer extension to 

rear of dwelling. 

113 High Street Finstock Chipping Norton 

Mrs Pippa Havenhand 

 

 

43.  22/02297/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Proposed rear and side wraparound extension and replacement front porch. Erection of oil 

tank (part-retrospective) (amended) 

Broad Close Main Street Over Norton 

MR CHARLIE DRURY 

 

 

44.  22/02298/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of replacement accessible play equipment. 

Fairytale Farm  Oxford Road Southcombe 

Mr Nick Laister 

 

 

45.  22/02311/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Single storey rear extension and alterations 

11 Rosamund Drive Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Tom Pollard 

 

 

46.  22/02335/CND Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 8 (details of integrated bat roosting and nesting opportunities for 

birds) and 4 (Render specification requirement) of planning permission 21/00738/FUL 

(Amended description) 

19 Combe Road Stonesfield Witney 

Mr Terry Barlow 

 

 

Page 77



DELGAT 
 

47.  22/02342/FUL Chadlington and Churchill REF 

  

Conversion of existing barn to dwelling (alterations and extension to previously approved 

permission 20/00738/FUL) 

Land At Green End Chadlington 

Mr C Wilsdon 

 

 

48.  22/02343/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement stone boundary wall and proposed gates into garden 

Jasmine House The Green Kingham 

Mr Ben Shearer 

 

 

49.  22/02344/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replacement stone boundary wall and proposed gates into garden 

Jasmine House The Green Kingham 

Mr Ben Shearer 

 

 

50.  22/02345/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Proposed Carport 

Corner Cottage Foscot Chipping Norton 

Mr David Shortland 

 

 

51.  22/02360/LBC Woodstock and Bladon WDN 

  

Internal and external alterations to replace the existing glazed roof of the Orangery with solid 

construction in slate, retaining the existing trusses internally. 

Estate Office Blenheim Park Woodstock 

Ms Kelly Whitton 

 

 

52.  22/02361/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of two outbuildings (Security Cabin and Gardener's Store). 

Maplewood Barn Great Tew Chipping Norton 

 

 

 

Page 78



DELGAT 
 

53.  22/02365/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of the existing workshop and outbuilding. Erection of single storey and first floor 

extensions, enlarge existing front entrance porch and alterations to vehicular access together 

with new entrance gates. 

The Cottage Pond Hill Stonesfield 

Mr Steven Greatbatch 

 

 

54.  22/02372/CND Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Discharge of condition 5 (Roof sample) and 9 (details of external lighting) of planning 

permission 21/00738/FUL 

19 Combe Road Stonesfield Witney 

Mr Terry Barlow 

 

 

55.  22/02373/CND Chipping Norton APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (timber boarding sample) of planning permission 20/01218/HHD 

Chase House 52 Over Norton Road Chipping Norton 

Mr Jeremy Catling 

 

 

56.  22/02374/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Loft conversion to create additional bedroom and ensuite, to include front and rear velux 

rooflights. 

4 Stonelee Close Chadlington Chipping Norton 

Mr Brown 

 

 

57.  22/02394/S73 Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Retrospective discharge of conditions 2-9 of planning permission 13/0346/P/FP as work now 

completed 

6 High Street Finstock Chipping Norton 

Mr M Breakell 

 

 

58.  22/02380/S73 Chipping Norton APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 to planning permission 19/02946/FUL to allow alterations to be made 

to the approved design of the communal garaging (upper and lower carports), the 

amalgamation of two of the residential units (units 1 and 2) to form a single unit, along with 

alterations to the floor layout of unit 4 to create an additional bedroom. (amended plans and 

description) 

Heythrop Hunt Kennels Kennels Lane Chipping Norton 

Nutbourne 

 

 

Page 79



DELGAT 
 

59.  22/02392/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Retention of two field shelters 

Land At Grid Reference E422866 N230892 Evenlode Moreton In Marsh 

Mr J Beswick 

 

 

60.  22/02397/HHD Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Proposed garage with study and a store above (amended plans). 

The Homestead Frog Lane Milton Under Wychwood 

Mr Jones 

 

 

61.  22/02435/CND Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 5 (construction environmental method statement) and 6 (landscape 

and ecological management plan) of Listed Building Consent 21/03511/LBC and planning 

permission 21/03510/HHD 

The Dower House Sarsgrove Wood Churchill 

Mr Christian Fleming on behalf of the client 

 

 

62.  22/02438/FUL Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of extension to existing warehouse and workshop. 

Royal Label Factory Station Yard The Leys 

Mr Peter Wright 

 

 

63.  22/02464/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 3 (details of external windows and doors) of Listed Building Consent 

21/02417/LBC 

Griffin House  Hook Norton Road Swerford 

Mr And Mrs Edward Tyack 

 

 

64.  22/02470/FUL Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Subdivision of existing property to create two dwellings, works to include loft conversion and 

alterations to raise part of roof 

1 Bury Barn Cottages  Lechlade Road Burford 

Christiaan Terblanche 

 

 

Page 80



DELGAT 
 

65.  22/02474/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Construction of a detached loggia and a double car port together with alterations to the 

existing vehicular access. 

Paddocks  Barns Lane Burford 

Dr Richard White 

 

 

66.  22/02484/S73 Burford APP 

  

Variation of condition 7 of planning permission 19/03151/FUL to allow changes to the 

landscaping scheme 

Tansley Farm Shilton Road Burford 

Mr Alokik Advani 

 

 

67.  22/02511/LBC Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal alterations to include changes to floor layouts to enlarge existing batroom and for the 

provision of new kitchen and associated works 

Flat 1 46 High Street Woodstock 

Miss Ainsley Diprose 

 

 

68.  22/02515/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Installation of external flue for wood burning stove 

19 Windrush Close Burford Oxfordshire 

Mr Steven Elvidge 

 

 

69.  22/02564/NMA Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

Demolition of single storey side extension. Erection of a two storey side extension and single 

storey rear extension (Non material amendment to change natural blue slates and solar slates 

on East facing roof slope with GB-Sol INFINITY roof bespoke PV panels and the Dormer 

window omitted on East elevation). 

44 The Green Freeland Witney 

Mr and Mrs Calcutt 

 

 

70.  22/02627/NMA Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Ground floor and first floor side extensions with conversion of attic (non-material 

amendment to allow the addition of a gable window and further roof lights). 

Cambo Peaks Lane Stonesfield 

Ms Hannah Crowe 

 

 

Page 81



DELGAT 
 

71.  22/02597/PDET28 Chipping Norton P2NRQ 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of an agricultural barn 

West End Farm  Churchill Road Chipping Norton 

Mr GC and JR Pearman 

 

 

72.  22/02598/PDET28 Chipping Norton P2NRQ 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of an agricultural barn 

West End Farm  Churchill Road Chipping Norton 

Mr GC and JR Pearman 

 

 

73.  22/02652/NMA Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Construction of replacement single storey rear extension to create new, larger kitchen (Non 

material amendment to 20/01754/HHD to alter the rooflights and the fenestration to the rear 

elevation) 

Old Post Office Church Street Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr George MacColl 

 

 

74.  22/02733/NMA Chipping Norton APP 

  

Demolition of existing front entrance porch and construction of two storey extension. 

Alterations to existing driveway inside the property boundary (Non material Amendment to 

add two small windows one either side of the porch (22/01583/HHD)) 

58 Churchill Road Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Stephen Tomalin 

 

 

75.  22/02775/CND  APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 10 (The Remediation Scheme) and 11 (Remediation scheme 

timetable) of planning permission 16/03761/OUT 

Land West Of Quarhill Close Quarhill Close Over Norton 

 

 

 

76.  22/02865/PDET28 Charlbury and Finstock P5WDN 

  

Erection of agricultural steel frame building for storage of agricultural equipment. 

Charlbury House Woodstock Road Charlbury 

Jo Bamford 

 

 

 

Page 82



APP/D3125/W/22/3294656 

Vicarage Field, Church Road, Milton-Under-Wychwood OX7 6LQ 

The development proposed is erection of a detached dwelling and associated works. 

Appeal Dismissed.  

  

 

APP/D3125/D/22/3298713  

64 Dunstan Avenue, Chipping Norton, Oxfordshire OX7 5LX  

The development proposed is demolition of existing conservatory and new 2 storey extension to 

rear.  

Appeal Dismissed.  

  

 

APP/D3125/W/21/3283856  

Beaconsfield Hall, Station Road, Shipton Under Wychwood OX7 6BQ  

The development proposed is floodlights to provide lighting for two tennis courts.  

Appeal Dismissed. 

 

 

APP/D3125/W/22/3294070  

Tennis Courts, Beaconsfield Hall, Shipton Under Wychwood OX7 6BQ  

The development proposed is erection of 9 lighting columns to provide floodlighting for tennis 

courts 1 and 2. 

Appeal Dismissed.  

 

 

APP/D3125/W/22/3296000 

Land South of Davis Close, Davis Close, Stonesfield, OX29 8HB  

The development proposed is erection of 2 dwellings with associated garages, access, landscaping 

and associated works. 

Appeal dismissed.  

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Applications for Development
	5 Update as to progress of 2 applications on allocated sites in Woodstock ref 21/00217/OUT and 21/00189/FUL
	5 agenda item appendix woodstock

	6 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers and Appeal Decisions
	14th November 2022 - Uplands Appeal Decisions


